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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FTREBEEREEBAWR DM

The board of directors (“Board”) of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (“Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017
together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
recorded a revenue from continuing operations
of HK$529,475,000, representing a decrease of
HK$149,041,000 or 22.0% from HK$678,516,000 for
the year 2016.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2017 from continuing
and discontinued operations amounted to
HK$243,846,000 (2016: profit of HK$164,642,000).
The loss of HK$243,846,000 was primarily from
results attributable to interests in associates of
HK$371,364,000. If such amount was excluded, the
Group shall have a profit attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$127,518,000.

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations for the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$3.07 (2016: basic and diluted
earnings per share of HK$1.75).

XEBBREBAFR AR ([RAT])
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REWBAG (5iE [ XNE@])EE
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBHRRDMN

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of 5 HK cents per share (2016: 10 HK cents
per share) for the year ended 31 March 2017 to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming 2017 annual general meeting (2017
AGM”).

Dividend warrants of the proposed final dividend are
expected to be despatched to the Shareholders on
28 August 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (“Register
of Members”) will be closed during the following
periods and during these periods, no transfer of
shares will be registered:

(i) To attend and vote at the AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2017 AGM, the Registers of Members will
be closed from Wednesday, 2 August 2017 to
Monday, 7 August 2017, both days inclusive.

KBRS
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H1EFERARKRE GRS (2016
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEBARR DN

(ii)

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2017 AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the branch share registrar
(“Branch Share Registrar”) of the Company
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 August 2017.

To qualify for the proposed final dividend

For the purpose of ascertaining the
Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Registers of Members will be
closed from Tuesday, 15 August 2017 to Friday,
18 August 2017, both days inclusive.

In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 14 August 2017.

(ii)
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBHARRDMN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in the property investment, property development,
securities investment and loan financing business.

(i) Property Investment

The Group has investment properties in Hong
Kong only.

Revenue of the Group’s property rental for
the year was HK$51,664,000 (2016:
HK$55,007,000), a decrease of approximately
HK$3,343,000 or 6.1% over the last year.
The Group’s investment properties comprise
residential, commercial and industrial
properties.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s
commercial and residential investment
properties were 100% leased out. The
industrial investment properties in Hong Kong
continued to maintain a high occupancy
rate of 88.8%. The property management
fee income was HK$834,000 (2016:
HK$881,000).

(ii) Property Development

A residential project, namely Paxton, at No. 311-
313 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon, Hong
Kong which offers about 49 units of 74,285
square feet gross floor area was launched
in July 2014. For the year under review,
the total revenue derived from the property
sales of Paxton was HK$456,601,000 (2016:
HK$599,484,000).

Another residential development project known
as No. 6 La Salle Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
which is expected to be launched in late 2017.

£ e
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEBARR DN

(i) BHKRE

(iii) Securities Investment

The Group maintains a securities portfolio with
a strategy of diversification to reduce effects of
price fluctuations of any single securities.

For the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Group held trading securities in the
amount of HK$287,493,000 as compared
to HK$64,695,000 as at 31 March 2016,
representing an 344.4% increase. It was derived
from (1) the disposal of trading securities during
the year which had a cost or fair value as at 31
March 2017 of HK$40,314,000; (2) purchase
of trading securities of HK$274,436,000 during
the year; and (3) net decrease in market value
in the amount of HK$11,324,000 of the trading
securities.

From continuing operations, the Group
recognised (1) loss on fair value changes of
trading securities for the year of HK$8,773,000
(2016: gain of HK$27,604,000); (2) loss of
HK$2,328,000 (2016: HK$38,504,000) on fair
value changes of financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss; and (3) gain
of HK$43,989,000 (2016: HK$57,915,000) on
disposal of available-for-sale investments. This
segment recorded a profit of HK$50,921,000
(2016: HK$70,328,000).

(iv) Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2017, this segment
recorded a revenue of HK$20,376,000 (2016:
HK$23,144,000) representing 12.0% decrease
comparing with the year 2016.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEFEEE AR A 5
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEEBHME DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt %5 [ &

Year ended 31 March

BZ3AMBLEE
2017 2016 Change
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHET
Continuing Operations FEKEXK
Revenue T 529,475 678,516 (149,041)
Gross profit EF 233,184 286,234 (53,050)
Gross profit margin EN= 44.0% 42.2% 1.8%
Distribution and selling expenses 4% 7 &z (64,829) (82,819) 17,990
Administrative expenses G (52,485) (58,905) 6,420
Finance costs BE KA (17,203) (23,815) 6,612
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B518) B8R (219,885) 707,344 (927,229)
Taxation charge BB (23,961) (32,326) 8,365
(Loss) profit for the year from REFBELEER
continuing operations ZAEE (BE)
kil (243,846) 675,018 (918,864)
Loss for the year REERILERE
from discontinued operations ¥ ZXFE
BB - (510,376) 510,376
(Loss) profit for the year from REFELE
continuing and RRBE
discontinued operations IHRREER
AEE (BE)
skl (243,846) 164,642 (408,488)
Net (loss) profit margin F (B ) &M= (46.1%) 24.3% (70.4%)
(Loss) earnings per share B (F5E)BF
Basic and diluted HEARNE#E (HK$3.07/8 7t) HK$1.75% T (HK$4.827% 1)
Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBEAER A 5
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBARRDMN

Revenue

The Group revenue from continuing operations for
the year ended 31 March 2017 decreased by 22.0%
to HK$529,475,000 compared with last year. Such
decrease in revenue was mainly because most of
the sale of Paxton units have been recorded in the
last financial year.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for this year was HK$233,184,000, a
decrease of HK$53,050,000 or 18.5% compared to
HK$286,234,000 in last year. Gross profit margin for
this year increased from 42.2% to 44.0%.

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$219,885,000, as compared with last
year profit of HK$707,344,000. It was mainly due
to the results attributable to deemed disposal of
interests in associates of HK$371,364,000.

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from
HK$82,819,000 to HK$64,829,000, a decrease of
21.7% compared with the last year. It was mainly
attributable to the decrease of sale of Paxton.

Administrative expenses were HK$52,485,000, a
decrease of 10.9% over last year of HK$58,905,000.

During the year under review, there was gain on
changes in fair value of investment properties
amounting to HK$21,877,000 for Hong Kong.

Finance costs was HK$17,203,000, decreased
by HK$6,612,000 or 27.8% for the year from
HK$23,815,000 in 2016 due to the reduction of bank
borrowings during the year.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBHRRDMN

Loss/Profit Attributable to Owners of the
Company and Loss/Earnings per Share

Loss for the year from continuing and discontinued
operations of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$243,846,000 (2016: profit
of HK$164,642,000). Net loss margin of this year
is 46.1% as compared to the net profit margin of
24.3% of last year.

Taxation charge decreased by 25.9% to
HK$23,961,000 from last year of HK$32,326,000.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations for the year 31 March 2017
was HK$3.07 as compared to basic and diluted
earnings per share HK$1.75 in last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operation through internally
generated cash flow and bank borrowings.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to HK$899,482,000 (2016:
HK$902,021,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as a ratio of total borrowings to total
equity, for the year was 0.32 (2016: 0.29).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has net
current assets of HK$1,058,122,000 (2016:
HK$713,897,000). Current ratio was 3.8 (2016: 3.0).
The bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2017
was HK$25,473,000 (2016: HK$12,332,000).

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFREBEAER A 5
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HE2017F3A31H ILFE » AR A
REFELERE R IELCEERAR
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F 5 F164,642,00008 7T ) - REE
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEBARR DN

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2017,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2017, bank loans amounting to
HK$899,482,000 (2016: HK$902,021,000) were
secured by investment properties, properties
held for development for sale, properties held for
sale, deposit and prepayments for a life insurance
policy and financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss of the Group having
a net book value of HK$2,160,596,000 (2016:
HK$2,183,285,000).

Exposure on Foreigh Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
Hong Kong dollars. During the year, the Group did
not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals

of subsidiaries or associated companies during the
year.

12
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBARRDMN

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (2016: nil).

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group spent
approximately HK$7,636,000 (2016: approximately
HK$3,091,000) on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and spent approximately
HK$30,000 (2016: approximately HK$119,000) on
addition of investment properties.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of HK$621,000.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of
35 employees (2016: 23 employees). Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$32,628,000 for the year under review (2016:
HK$37,304,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practice. The Group has set
out the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the
Hong Kong’s employees. The Group has a share
option scheme to motivate employees.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE G R A 5
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBARRDMN

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focus its efforts on the
development of its existing principal businesses: (1)
property investment; (2) property development; (3)
securities investment; and (4) loan financing services
and other potential projects with a view to providing
steady returns as well as fruitful growth for the
Shareholders.

In Hong Kong, despite additional measures imposed
by the government to cool the housing market,
the impact on the property market was only short-
lived. With the prevailing low interest rates and the
record high transacted land prices in the recent
land auctions, sentiment in the primary property
market has been holding up well, with home buyers’
confidence remaining generally strong. In view
of favourable market sentiment, the Group will
continue to promote the sale of the remaining units
of Paxton and it expects the launch of the presale
of its residential property development at the site of
No. 6 La Salle Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong in late
2017.

14
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEBHRRDMN

In addition, the Group will further extend its principal
business and direct its resources to loan financing
services and it is expected that such business will
continue to be part of the main income stream of the
Group.

Meanwhile, the Group will also maintain a
stringent financial policy and a prudent cash flow
management to ensure reasonable liquidity for the
Group’s operations as well as for its existing and
future investments.

We believe that in such a volatile economic
environment, these operation strategies will
enable the Group to maintain its competitiveness
and mitigate risks, thereby ensuring the Group’s
sustainable growth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 May 2017
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tse, aged 59, is an executive director, president,
chief executive officer and authorized representative
of the Company and chairman of the Executive
Committee, members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee since 18
April 2017. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from Adam Smith
University of America in the United States in 1996.
He has more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. He serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Tse was appointed to the Board as an executive
director and vice president in 2005, and was
subsequently re-designated from vice president to
president and appointed as chief executive officer
in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from
an executive director to a non-executive director of
the Company and resigned as president and chief
executive officer. In 2017, Mr. Tse was re-designated
from a non-executive director to executive director,
president and chief executive officer of the
Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 59, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director and
deputy chairman, and a member of the Executive
Committee of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved
in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company and
Eminence. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as
an executive director in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was
appointed as vice president. Ms. Lui is the wife of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group and
substantial shareholder of the Company. She is also
the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 32, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is a
member of the Executive Committee since 2010.
Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Politics from the University of
Durham, England in 2007. She also received her
Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal Practice Course
qualification in 2009 from the College of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is a daughter of Ms. Lui, the vice
president of the Company.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also a
member and chairman of the Audit Committee;
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the United States in
1991 and is a fellow member of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the
public accounting profession and the commercial
sector, especially the travel industry. He has
experience in the preparation for the listing of shares
on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public
accountant under his own name.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 68, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow
member of the Chartered Management Institute,
England; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student
Society of Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology; and a member of the Regional Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Hospital Authority. He
is now the only Hong Kong Citizen elected as UK
Council member and Authorised Representative
in Hong Kong of the Association of International
Accountant, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of
International Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Jong has over 40 years of management experience
in the financial, industrial and property business.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 82, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. He is also
a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service
with the Hong Kong Government for more than 40
years. During 1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong
Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Mr. Kwong, aged 74, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (“Eminence”). Mr. Kwong graduated from
The University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was
admitted as Barrister-at- Law in the United Kingdom
in 1970 and in Hong Kong in 1973 respectively. He
has over 30 years of experience in the legal field.
He serves as director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and Eminence. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was
appointed as executive director, president and chief
executive officer of the Company; but Mr. Kwong
has resigned from all positions in the Company on
18 April 2017.

MR. LAI LAW KAU
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Mr. Lai, aged 56, is a non-executive director of
the Company since December 2013. He has been
involved in the textiles industry over 20 years and
has extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. He is also
a non-executive director of Eminence. Mr. Lai is a
paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the vice president
of the Company, and he is also an uncle of Ms.
Koon, an executive director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”)
of the Company is committed to achieving high
standards of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance long-term Shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions and where appropriate,
adopted some of the recommended best practices
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”). Set out
below are the details of the deviation from the code
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

20

Annual Report 2016/17 R

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R A 5

ARREE([BEE]) e ([EE®])
AFEBEBMRERE BYM ME
M BEERATN LUEHSLEE
AR -BEBEHNRRERACES
EEEH  URERR 2 ® RIRA
RERREE

RER ARE—BHEBTLEENR
SFRIREE RS ([EEERT
B ) Frat 2 REf 5 ST RIES - WiE
HEBATN HKRAT LEERER
e TN E BRI ATES -
mHRA (T EWRA ) 2 sFRHEXE

15



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

CG Code Provision A.2.1 requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the chairman
of the Board and was holding the office of chief
executive officer of the Company. While this was a
deviation from CG Code Provision A.2.1, dual role
leadership has been in practice by the Company
for decades and has withstood the test of time. The
Board considers this arrangement to be appropriate
for the Company as it can preserve the consistent
leadership culture of the Company and allow
efficient discharge of the executive functions of the
chief executive. The Board believes that a balance
of power and authority is adequately ensured
by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals including
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Meanwhile, the day-
today management and operation of the Group
are delegated to divisional management under the
leadership and supervision of Mr. Kwong in the role
of chief executive officer who is supported by the
executive Directors and senior management.

Mr. Kwong resigned as executive Director, chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer on 18 April
2017.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, with
3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”). The Board has in
its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for decision making and fulfilling
its business needs. The participation of non-
executive Directors in the Board bring independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests
of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than 1 month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

The composition of the Board during the year and
up to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
— President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - Vice President
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(re-designated on 18 April 2017)
Mr. Lai Law Kau
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the Directors for indemnifying
their liabilities arising from the Group’s corporate
activities.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Code.
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All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr. Tsui
Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings
Details of the attendance of individual Directors at

Board meetings, committee meetings and AGM held
during the year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

PREF(BEBEAKLE FEK
Lt EBARE L #KEEL FE
BikeE HREBRE HELESLE
KREEBFRLE)NFAAEZNEE
MEBEXRERNBERNEHNRSE
ZERB S IEE - TR B RERD
TABREFEAEREFAEETRA
ZRERE &% w8 RAE MR
SANBIEEBEER -

EENEERZHER

B ZE2017F3A31H ILFE  ERIE
EREFEER ZEEERMER
BERE2HFBRFBNOT

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2016/17
2016/17TEERNEERZEERENHELE

2016 AGM Audit Remuneration = Nomination
20164 Board Committee Committee Committee
BRRBEERE EEX® ERZET FHZEE REZEE
Number of meetings BERAE 1 4 2 1 1
Executive Directors HITER
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B8 &7 (1A20174F

(resigned on 4B18HE(T)

18 April 2017) 11 4/4 - 11 11
Lui Yuk Chu &Rk 11 4/4 - - -
Koon Ho Yan Candy B A 0/1 4/4 - - -
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky K (20174

(re-designated as 4B18HFEA

executive Director on BITER)

18 April 2017) 11 4/4 - - -
Lai Law Kau FEZETK (FA20174F

(resigned on 4B18HEH(T)

18 April 2017) 11 4/4 - - -
Independent BIFHTES

non-executive Directors
Tsui Chun Kong RES 1/1 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Jong Koon Sang A 1/1 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Hon Tam Chun o 11 4/4 2/2 11 1/1
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TEERHRE
Corporate Governance Functions TEERIIRE

The Board is responsible for performing the ZEZE28HTEITUTLES ARE:
following corporate governance duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company policies (a) #IF Mg AR BB EE AR

and practices on corporate governance, REFEH BEEARRIEREBAN
monitoring of the corporate governance By WK AEEEE B
practices and procedures; and maintenance 2 B PR RN ) EP BE AR I B - MR
of appropriate and effective risk management BTEANREREE

and internal control systems of the Group to
ensure compliance with applicable rules and
regulations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and (b) BT MERAEBETELSHE
continuous professional development of BAENBINIRFBETELER:
Directors and senior management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies (c) &l K& EERAN AR ESTIARE K
and practices on compliance with legal and EEHREAEMNBERTER:
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code (d) flFE BRI NEREBENESFH
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) BTEAREHRFR (BE) &
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with (e) #& &7 AR AIEST FiAR BT E%14
)

Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (Corporate (EERTARPEE WS
Governance Code and the Corporate ORI

Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board M & £2017F3A31HIEFERN &
had performed the above-mentioned corporate =P EH AR A2 EEANE
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s SFARNREERTEZHE L TR A
policies and practices on corporate governance and fB77 I alt > 2 E R BEAE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 25 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31 March
2017.

The principal functions of Audit Committee include:

— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures; and

— to review of the internal control and risk
management framework.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFREBEAER A 5

EXEERIZER
EEZET

ESERBAEAERZECRARTE
MACHNRBE EFSTE MR LE
R BSNBRESE NAEMK A
RINARZZRELRRRIFER M
BENEE BR BN BESEH
RARBBIE - ZEEXEBMHFEL

BREN AN F R FE25H °
BEREES

EZREZEEHIBB/UIENITESA
K BREREESLEE (BREEEE
) HEELREREEFILE-H
F2017F3A31B L FE EZELE

SLBT2REE -

BERREGZTIERB B

]

B EAZREN Z R

— RTEFRAREFEMHERRAE
1725

- ERAKBZHMBRERALA
MEERF &

- R A EREITE K E R B IR

27

Annual Report 2016/17 %R



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2016; (i) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
for the six months ended 30 September 2016
and recommended the same to the Board for
approval; and (iii) reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of
the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$2,100,000 (2016: HK$1,902,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services amounted
to HK$788,000 (2016: HK$615,000).

Review of 2016/17 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2016/17
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Jong Koon Sang (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong and Mr. Hon Tam Chun who are INEDs, and
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2017.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

— to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group; and

- to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policies and structure for the Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4 members,
including Mr. Hon Tam Chun (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and
Mr. Jong Koon Sang who are INEDs and Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive Director,
held 1 meeting for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

- to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy (“Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieving board
diversity in the Company in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate
governance standard. The Company recognizes
the importance of having a diverse team of
board members, which is an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. The
Nomination Committee has been delegated the
authority to review and assess the diversity of
the Board and its skills and experience by way of
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to
the Policy when identifying and selecting suitably
qualified candidates. The Policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; and
(i) assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary of the
Company, has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls
over the Group’s activities, with executive
responsibility for the running of the Group’s
business being delegated to management. The
management provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates in order to give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects to enable them
to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks
which is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board is also responsible for overseeing the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems by
requiring all department managers to undergo
a detailed self-risk assessment process using a
common risk management framework. It covers all
material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, on an annual basis. It
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.
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Under the enterprise risk management framework,
policies and procedures are in place to identify,
assess, manage, control and report risks. Such risks
include strategic, credit, operational (administrative
system, human resources, reputation), market,
liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to
these risks is continuously monitored by the Board
through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with specified limits of
authority. The Board has clearly defined the
authorities and key responsibilities of each division
to ensure adequate checks and balances. The
internal control system has been designed to
safeguard the Group’s assets against authorised
use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable
financial information, and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function.
During the year under review, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and there were no major issue
but areas for improvement have been identified by
the Audit Committee and appropriate measures
taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise
risk management and internal control systems in
place for the year and up to the date of issuance
of the annual report is effective and adequate. In
addition, the Board is currently of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
keeping proper accounting records and preparing
financial statements for each financial year/period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group as at the end of the financial year/
period and of the profit and loss for the year/period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have adopted all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards in all material respects,
selected appropriate accounting policies and then
applied them consistently, made judgements and
estimates that are fair and reasonable. The Directors
use the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements unless this is inappropriate.

The Company recognises that a clear, balanced
and timely presentation of financial report is crucial
in maintaining the confidence of stakeholders.
Reasonable disclosure of Company’s financial
position and prospects are provided in the report.
Annual and interim results are published within
three and two months after the end of the relevant
financial year period respectively.

A statement of the Company’s external auditor
about their reporting responsibilities is included in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 68
of the Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than
one-tenth of the share capital of the Company
carrying the rights of voting at general meetings of
the Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (for the attention of the Company
Secretary).
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary and deposit at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
1218share@easyknit.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not less
than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses giving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned under applicable laws and
rules.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information
will be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

- periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

- the Company’s website at www.easyknit.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views, and
welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the
Group.

2016 Annual General Meeting (“2016 AGM”)

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the annual general meeting
as a forum to meet with Shareholders and to hear
their view and answer their questions about the
Group and its business.
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The President and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2016 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2016 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2016 AGM

— received the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

— declared a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2016

— re-election of Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as Directors

— re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to repurchase shares of an amount not
exceeding 10% of the total number of the
Company’s issued shares as at the date of 2016
AGM
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— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the total number of the
Company’s issued shares as at the date of 2016
AGM

2017 Annual General Meeting (“2017 AGM”)

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2017
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2017 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
buy back of Company’s shares and the issue of the
Company’s shares. Further details of business to
be conducted at the 2017 AGM will be set out in
the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that have
occurred since 1 April 2017 to the date of approval
of this report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERHRS

This is the Group’s first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“report”). It discloses the
Group’s sustainability performance over the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The report follows the framework of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

Unless otherwise stated, this report focuses on our
Hong Kong operations which represent the core
businesses of the Group.

The Group believes in environmental protection and
cares for the community through engaging in various
charitable initiatives to make positive contributions
to society.

During the year under review, the Group committed
to a reasonable standard of corporate social
responsibility and strictly complied with relevant
laws and regulations reporting. The two key subject
areas for reporting are:

(1) Environmental; and
(2) Social.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Emissions

The major source of our carbon emissions is the
use of energy. We have implemented various
energy-saving measures to help reduce our carbon
emissions.

Green Workplace

The Group has introduced a green policy to
enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff with aim of saving energy, fully utilizing
resources and recycling wastes in daily office
operation.

The Group has undertaken measures to encourage
three main areas of environmental friendly practice
in the office — paper saving, water saving and
electricity saving.

Paper saving

e Double sided printing

e Encourage use of electronic communication and
electronic copy of documents

Water saving

e Reminders to switch off water tap after use in
pantry and washroom

e Regular check on water pipe and tap to prevent
leakage
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Electricity saving

e replaced the lighting basins in our offices with
energy efficient lightings

e office equipment carries Energy Label issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department which would further decrease
energy consumption in our office

e fan-coils in the commercial and industrial
buildings are turned off after 8:00 p.m.

e maintain proper temperature of air conditioning
SOCIAL COMMITMENT
Employment

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees,
the Group is committed to offering professional
development opportunities and a healthy working
environment for all employees.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has a total of
approximately 35 full-time employees in Hong Kong.

The Group reviews its compensation and benefits
programs annually to ensure its compensation and
benefits packages remain competitive. In addition,
the Group continues to conduct annual review of its
pay and benefits packages of employees including
medical schemes and retirement benefits to align
them with prevailing offers in the market.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBRSE

Health and Occupational Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and
healthy working environment to all employees. We
conduct regular monitoring of the work environment
and staff facilities.

Development and Training

The Group aims to create an environment
of continuous learning to facilitate their staff
in developing careers and equipping the
knowledge and skills to better fulfil their roles and
responsibilities. External courses and seminars are
provided on an ongoing basis throughout the year.

Labour Standards

The Group hires employees in accordance with the
minimum working age with valid citizen identity in
strict compliance with the requirements of the local
employment law.

Community

The Group has dedicated itself to take up its
corporate social responsibility for the communities
where it is present. It strives to repay society by
participating in charitable sponsorship in education.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The Directors present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 69 to 71.

The Directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of 5 HK cents per share to the
shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 28 August 2017, and the retention of
the remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$7,636,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2017 by independent professional
property valuer and the gain of HK$21,877,000
arising on changes in fair value of investment
properties, which had be charged directly to profit
or loss, as compared to loss arising on changes in
fair value of HK$33,238,000 for the year ended 31
March 2016. Details of these are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2017 are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organization by the Group
during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,660,000.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2017 were as follows:

Contributed surplus AR
Accumulated profits 2505 A

RAR ZAJH DK

ARAAIHR2017F3A31B A IR T
R FEEHEIT

HK$’000
FET

220,937
689,330

910,267

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE
DIRECTORS 5=
The Directors of the Company during the year and RFERNEHEARBREHE I KA F
up to the date of this report were: ZEEWMT:
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky A oK EE T A
(re-designated as President and (R2017F4518H F1F 5
Chief Executive Officer on 18 April 2017) FTIEREETHAEE)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President) BERLT (FEE)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy B AR+
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B RANLE

(resigned on 18 April 2017 as executive Director,
President and Chief Executive Officer)

(R2017FE4518H B (FH 7T
EEZ FTEFEETHAR)

Non-executive Directors: FEHITES:
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Wi oK B T A
(re-designated on 18 April 2017) (R2017F4/418H 5H1F)
Mr. Lai Law Kau FEREIR AL
(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017%F4 7 18H & (F)
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHITES:
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong REBEE
Mr. Jong Koon Sang §E 70 A S A
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BREARLE

RIBARRZ ARAIRIFEINGR - EE
KRZEMIREBFREFR AR E S
RERITZRRBFRE LRESR
WA ER WREERET-

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99, Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Tsui Chun Kong will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company by rotation and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent
to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
1 year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the listing rules

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes to information required to be
disclosed by Directors are set out below.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices
and in consideration of the increasing level of duties
and responsibilities as well as the market conditions,
the remuneration package of the following Directors
were reviewed and revised with effect from 1 April
2016, details of the breakdown are in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements:

(1) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim - annual
emoluments were revised from HK$1,242,000 to
HK$1,110,000;

(2) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - annual emoluments were
revised from HK$21,197,000 to HK$17,128,000;
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

(8) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy — annual emoluments
were revised from HK$492,000 to HK$498,000;
and

(4) The annual Director’s emoluments for non-
executive Directors were revised from
HK$162,000 to HK$140,000.

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky was re-designated from
a non-executive Director to executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 18 April 2017.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim resigned from the
executive Director of the Company, chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer with effect from 18
April 2017.

Mr. Lai Law Kau resigned from the non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 18 April
2017.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change
in Directors’ information that is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 16 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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(a) Interests in the Company (long position)

(a) RERQBz2ERE (HFR)

Aggregate
number of Approximate
ordinary percentage
shares held of interest
BREEBER EZZER
IR 17 48 8 Aok
46,609,144 58.69%
29,179,480 36.74%

Number of
ordinary
shares held
Name of Director Capacity BEEER
EEEE 5% B8 E
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
FERZL (note i)
EEXaA (B1iti)
Interest of controlled 17,429,664
corporation (note ii)
REGER R
(Htii)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
BAM=EL (note i)
EEXEA (M)
Notes: o

(U]

(ii)

(ii)

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited (“Winterbotham
Trust”) as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family

members other than her spouse).

17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned by Sea Rejoice
Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and an executive director of the Company, is deemed to be
interested in the shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the
beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFREBEAER A 5

(i)

(i)

29,179,4800% f% 15 LA Magical Profits
LimitedZ H&EFREMBEAERER &2
7] 75 B Accumulate More Profits Limited
2 &4 - MAccumulate More Profits
LimitedBl| 5 {E & The Magical 2000 Trust
(ESBANBEEEHRL T RSB ERB
INC RIERK B ) Z fErE NREFEREEA
AR (NBSERETE])2EHE -

17,429,664 ML F BER A B B ik
B ZARHASERR T2 ERER -

BAMEZ LT (EERLETHNLEZRARA
RI#N1TE B ) B H {EAThe Magical 2000
Trust2am A Z —Z &1 AR ARRDF
HERE -

51

Annual Report 2016/17 %R



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

(b) Interests in associated corporations

(long positions)

Eminence Enterprise Limited

Name of Director

ExEE

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
EES L

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Number of

ordinary

shares held

Capacity BELER

5 ROEE

Beneficiary of a trust 457,330,692

(note iv)

EEX@A (Hiitiv)

Beneficiary of a trust 457,330,692

(resigned on 18 April 2017) (note v)
BEAMKL EREX@A (Hitv)
(201754 A18H FHE)
Notes:

(iv)

In the 457,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 363,781,194

shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by

Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited

(“Goodco”) respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company. For the 23,480,281 underlying shares, of which

880,281 are the underlying shares of 2014 convertible note held

by Goodco and the remaining 22,600,000 underlying shares

of the share options granted to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Koon
Wing Yee (the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu) on 14 October 2016.
Goodco Development Limited was also interested in 880,281

underlying shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the

full conversion of the 2014 convertible note. Sea Rejoice Limited

is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital

of the Company and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately 36.74% of

the issued share capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned

by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-

owned by Winterbotham Trust as the trustee of The Magical
2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu

and her family members other than her spouse).
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(v)  Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and an executive director of the Company, is deemed to be
interested in the shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the
beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACAQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE G R A 5

v BAMRZL (EEHRZEINLREFRAQF
#H17EE) AR EVEAThe Magical 2000
TrustZm AZ —HF 17 - WAR ARG
AR

bR X Fr#E B8 & S - 182017463 A 31
H  ARREZRETETHRAESHRE
AR BB RARE AR (E& R
B 5 R HIEAEHIEXVER) BIR% 1D « 48
RO MEEEFEEREESR
HAE 5B EEXVERSE7 R 5585 EBZA AN
SANR RN ERIAR (2
REERBEEFRAEKRI 2 ZE
S B RR S AR B VB B 2 A
) HEERARRIEESFNAE
B SE35215 AT B 2 B flt A4
WA R R BIZESFAIZEAE AN
NA LB TR SOAE

EERERODUEEE 2EF

AREHEAL A B RRRAEE
A Aa] B PR BT S (e 22 HF - B
ANRRIEFAFERE AN QR SHEMA
H A AN B8 2 B fp sk B4 8 &
o AR IS E R H AL B 185k A
N2 FRERT TR IARE R
DA SRR E Al A A B R 2 IR AN K
BRRE S KEATET (LSRR -

53

Annual Report 2016/17 %



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Name of Shareholder

BREM

Koon Wing Yee

BkE

Sea Rejoice Limited
LEABRATE

Magical Profits Limited

Accumulate More Profits
Limited

Winterbotham Trust

BREFERERL

Winterbotham Holdings
Limited

Markson International
Holdings Limited

Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper

Ivan Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper
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Note
Kt

I &if

I &ii

i & iii

iif

fii

iii

iii

Capacity
5%

Interest of spouse
ALfB i as

Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled
corporation
AR 2 s
Trustee
fEFEA
Interest of controlled
corporation
XEEEE 2 s
Interest of controlled
corporation
XA 2 s
Interest of controlled
corporation
XPEEEE 2 s
Interest of controlled
corporation

REHEE 2 st

ERRRRRD RAARR G 28

MR2017E3A318 » AR TR 3¢
AR HEEREESMHEER
Bl EXVEBEE2 K 5835 B AV (& X ZA [A)
P NN B A I 0 AV /NI B o=

KBS {5 5336/

K//E\

FE 2B

AREDIORE AL (RARRIES
HEBITHRABERIN AT :

Number of
ordinary
shares held
(long position)
FEEER
BREE
(#R)
46,609,144
17,429,664
29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480
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Notes:

(i)

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
The remaining 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Winterbotham Trust as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the
Company, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and an executive
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the 29,179,480
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, is deemed to be interested in the 46,609,144 shares by
virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of
Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

Winterbotham Trust is the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members
other than her spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25%
by Markson International Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively.
Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr.
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to
60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. lvan
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in
the register kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme
(“Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the
shareholders of the Company for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board, may at its discretion,
grant share options to any eligible person to
subscribe for the shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
Scheme. During the year ended 31 March 2017, no
share option was outstanding, granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. Particulars
of the Scheme and details of the movements during
the year in the share options of the Company are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 98.9% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 72.2% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 46.6% of the Group’s turnover and
the largest customer accounted for approximately
10.8% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors, their close associates
and shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers or
customers.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong have been
carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016,
is an independent qualified valuer. The valuations
was based on investment method and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies
and were used in preparing 2016/17 final results.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at
HK$1,628,300,000 (2016: HK$1,615,500,000), an
increase over 2016 after adjusted for the additions
of investment properties. The increase in fair value
of approximately HK$21,877,000 was recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year. Development properties and
non-investment properties of the Group were stated
at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.

The increase in fair value of approximately
HK$21,877,000 was mainly attributable to increase
in fair value of investment properties, while most
of the remaining investment properties showed an
increase in fair value of properties in Hong Kong as
a result of rising rental rates of certain retail business
sectors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its
businesses and operations. Through internal control
systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are
monitored and do not adversely affect the Group’s
operations and performances. The relevant risks are
managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list
of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from
Hong Kong. The conditions of the economy as a
whole and the property market may have significant
impact to the Group’s financial results and
conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with
local and oversea laws (including those of Bermuda
and British Virgin Islands) and regulations, including
but not limited to property sale, management and
construction as well as companies and securities
laws. The Group has constantly monitored its
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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EEEHRE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides
that, among other, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices and related matters
provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them. In this connection, the
Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Company during the year.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business
ethics, this underpins how we conduct business
with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

We value our employees who are the Group’s
most important assets. We reward our staff
with competitive remuneration packages and
benefits. We are committed to fostering a
conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free
working environment. We have training budget to
subsidise the employees’ continued professional
development.
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Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across our operations. Safety guidelines are
established to safeguard the employees from any
occupational hazards.

Customers

We strive to provide high quality and reliable
services to our customers. The privacy of our
clients’ professional information is well protected
through a privacy policy. Any complaints from
customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

We are committed to forging collaborative
partnership with our suppliers and have a database
of approved suppliers and vendors who are
assessed on a regular basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive Directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.
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The emolument of the Directors is determined by the
Board after recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of individual Directors, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors
as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duty of Audit
Committee is to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprised of 3 independent non-executive Directors.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 20 to 39.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 May 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B R S

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 69 to 173,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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B 2 EERE

Key audit matter
BEETEE
Valuation of investment properties

REWEZIEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

B BEREEEENEEQTERYREXNZ HE R
BHR HMABNREDEZGER—HARESFE

At 31 March 2017, the fair value of investment properties
was approximately HK$1,628 million (consolidated
statement of financial position), with a fair value gain
recognised in profit or loss of approximately HK$22
million (consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income).

7201743 A318 IR E W % A~ ¥ E4/51,628,000,000
BT (FREMBHRAR) RERBR 2 A FERSENR
22,000,000/ 7T (FrAREE L EMEEMPERR) °

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by an independent firm
of qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BERERENME AT EDREBE L& EREELERM
77 ([ ERD ) 2 (R ESIR - hEPTERA 2 (A E 7
REZH A ZFBEREA M BIREAM 150K EE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBAOMERERREENSER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BAEREMER[BEZHBETRE:

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers
and management of the Group about the
valuation techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

RrhEm R BEREEEETRGETE WED
BRE FERAZERRR T2HEHRE - HE
PRz EE@m A REE

. Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements;
FRLEAERRAHOZ e HEmNE &%
EEREERMGEM ER 2 TBIE:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers; and

HEMEMMNER I RFEIL: K

° Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by
the Valuers and management of the Group by
comparing with relevant market information with
similar properties.

AL R E Y S AERE T 5 B B AT (4 (R E R
N BEEEEREERBAZIZWAZAEL-
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Key audit matter
BEETEE
Impairment assessment on loans receivable

FEW B2 B

We identified the impairment assessment on loans
receivable as a key audit matter due to estimation
uncertainty inherent in the management’s credit risk
assessment process in respect of the collectability of
loans receivable.

RN EIREERERE Rz AR E M 2 EE R G BE
FHEADHEE 2 - BFIRREREFR Z B E R —IR
RAgEIt =R

The loans are assessed for impairment individually.
In determining the impairment on loans receivable,
management of the Group considers financial
background and creditability of individual borrower.
BETRERNERFT L - RETRKER2RER - &
SEEBRSEREMNERAZHBE S RAIEE-

At 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of loans
receivable was approximately HK$309 million (note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements) and no impairment
allowance on loans receivable was made in the current
year (note 4 to the consolidated financial statements).
201743 A31H - [EWE 3 2 BRE{E ) /309,000,000/5
7T (AR 6 B TS R aR MY 5119) R pA 7 €8 J2 36 A Bt e W B R A
HORBER M (AR E B TSRk FE4) -

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBSOMEERRERNSER

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on
loans receivable included:

BV U E SR 2 B RHE 2 ARRE R B

° Understanding the Group’s policy on granting
loans to the borrowers and the related credit
control including ongoing loan monitoring
procedures;

TR BEEEREERTERAZCBEREBRE
EREETERER ZEEEH:

° Evaluating the management’s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection
history of the borrowers; and
HEEREEASHEEERAVBES Bk
& BB E BB R Z i8R AR AR
AZEEEZ R

° Checking the existence and recoverable amount
of the underlying collateral, if applicable.

BENBEERRZ FERETRE S ER

HpE 8

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. BEAFTEEZFUHEMELSET -EMZE8BET)
The other information comprises the information included in the annual R ERAWNEE  BTEEERMEHRE LT
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and  FIEVAZERAT R

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover IR AMBEHEANER T MREHMEE
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance M TEZSHMEERRTIMAFANERTLE

conclusion thereon.

A
Ay ©

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, 4 A K FIGERAMBRENES RANEER
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, RBIEHMEE fFEILiBRET ZEEMELILH
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the ~ Bf## &R sl R FIE R BRE T AEEN BN FE
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit ~E A& L FFEE A RRAMAB N - &
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we ~ REMERITH TIE  IMRR IR AEMEEFE
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this =~ EAIERMRI RFIFEEREXFE -HEEHE

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to ~ #{f5)8 B (T {a] 3R & »

report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EERE

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yen Sau Yin, Emily.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 May 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEEmkHMEE KGR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

Continuing operations

Revenue

Cost of properties sold and services
rendered

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
investment properties

(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

Loss on changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss on changes in fair value of derivatives
component of convertible notes

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Results attributable to interests in
associates

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation charge

(Loss) profit for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

(Loss) profit for the year

e
HE MERHIRTS AR A

H A YA
RESHARA
TR
KREMEZAYE
gl (B1R)
FIEEEREZATE
28 (BR) W
BAFEFARGEZ
ERMEEZ
RNHEZEFER
AMBRERZITER D
ZRHEEPEE
HERAIHREEREZ
Wz
AHhEREZ
HEEER
HEMBAR 2 EE

B DR S R
RAMRA

Brpi Al (&18) & A
IR

KEFBEREEBKZ
AEE (BE)EN

SRIEREEK
KEERIERERBZ
REERER

AREE (B8 ) a7

NOTES
Hrit

33

11

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
529,475 678,516
(296,291) (392,282)
233,184 286,234
34,426 24,547
(64,829) (82,819)
(52,485) (58,905)
21,877 (33,238)
(8,773) 27,604
(2,328) (38,504)
(11,003) -
43,989 57,915
(25,376) -
- (10,822)
(371,364) 559,147
(17,203) (23,815)
(219,885) 707,344
(23,961) (32,326)
(243,846) 675,018
- (510,376)
(243,846) 164,642
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REEEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BZE2017F8H31HILFE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other comprehensive income (expense) HttZHEUA (FIx)
Item that will not be reclassified FERET BB 7R
subsequently to profit or loss: EmEE -
Fair value gain on leasehold properties TRAMEEREIREMEL
upon transfer to investment properties N ERE - 28,967
Items that may be reclassified subsequently &1 AJfEEFT 7152
to profit or loss: EmEA -
Share of other comprehensive income of PaK(5) /NG ol
associates: Hh 2 mEIA
Share of translation reserve of PaK(5): /N ol
associates bE 5 (6,393) (2,654)
Share of investment revaluation reserve PaK(5): /N ol
of associates & B 7,361 (7,287)
Reclassification of translation reserve to REBREERTE S
profit or loss upon partial disposal of RELERE QT
interests in associates without loss of HnEmRER ER
significant influence B 2 B FEE 3,660 -
Reclassification of investment REBREERNTE
revaluation reserve to profit or loss RELERE QT
upon partial disposal of interests in o=k ERsEE
associates without loss of significant BmzikashEtE
influence 1,199 -
5,827 (9,941)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEERE Y
investments N EZEF) 23,834 37,458
Released on disposal of available-for- REERHEE
sale investments %8 R R bR (43,989) (57,915)
Reclassification adjustment upon RAl SR ERERZ
impairment of available-for-sale B DA
investments 25,376 -
Exchange difference arising on mEGINEEELER
translation of foreign operations - (3,456)
Reclassification of translation reserve to RR AL E WS
profit or loss upon deemed disposal REIREFDESE
of subsidiaries B 2 B - 189
Reclassification of translation reserve A E M B A B
to profit or loss upon disposal of BHHEE
subsidiaries B 2 B R - 1,799
Reclassification of investment RE AN E B
revaluation reserve to profit or loss NEREFHEE
upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries BRZIEEEHEB = (2,469)
11,048 (34,335)
Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A 5
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeBEaREMEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017#3H31 A1 F/&
2017 2016
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FETT FET
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEzHMEE
for the year WA (F%) 11,048 (5,368)
Total comprehensive (expense) income REEZEE
for the year () WALz (232,798) 159,274
Attributable to: oMb
Owners of the Company: ZAN/NGI )
(Loss) profit for the year from REFELEEG 2
continuing operations REE (BE) RN (243,846) 675,018
Loss for the year from discontinued REERIEEEER 2
operations KEEEE - (536,082)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RRARRRDEARFE
owners of the Company (BE)RAH (243,846) 138,936
Non-controlling interests: e M A
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEEEET 2
operations REERH - 25,706
(243,846) 164,642
Total comprehensive (expense) income DEARFEZEE
for the year attributable to: (R W A%zE
— owners of the Company —ARRERE (232,798) 129,517
- non-controlling interests — IR R S - 29,757
(232,798) 159,274
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share &R E AR N #E (5518) &2 7 13
From continuing and discontinued REFERD KL
operations TS (HK$3.077% 7T) HK$1.755%8 5T
From continuing operations REFFBEEEEB (HK$3.077% 7t) HK$8.507% 7T
Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIEBE AR A 7 1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
At 31 March 2017
R20174#3/31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Convertible notes

Derivatives component of
convertible notes

Loans receivable

Intangible asset

Statutory deposits

Deposit and prepayments for
a life insurance policy

Current assets

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for sale
Investments held for trading
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable

Financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FERBEE

WME - BB MR
BEME
dNEIL £
AHhERE
QEJIES

AR REZITERD

FEME R
BIVEE
EERE
ABREZEE
RIER

mEBEE
FEHEERME
FEHEME
FEEERE
B 5 N EAM W IR
FEME R
BFER AR
LEREE
RITHEHR A

nEBaE

B 5 REMEMNRIER
eI
BEMRTEE

NOTES
Hrit

14
15
16
17
18

18
19
20
21

22

23
24
25
19

26
27

28

29

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
11,036 5,041
1,628,300 1,615,500
586,555 952,092
45,354 350,222
67,418 63,672
6,167 17,170
75,721 43,552
500 -

205 -
10,091 9,997
2,431,347 3,057,246
312,136 106,513
392,489 650,527
287,493 64,695
93,969 74,690
233,133 158,848
95,309 -
25,473 12,332
1,440,002 1,067,605
95,226 87,018
24,381 41,917
262,273 224,773
381,880 353,708
1,058,122 713,897
3,489,469 3,771,143

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE AR A 5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2 AN b

mEeMBMRREK

At 31 March 2017

R2017#3A31H

Capital and reserves BEAR KRB
Share capital [N
Reserves i

Total equity MR 4ARE

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Secured bank borrowings BEMEITEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEBE

2017 2016

NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000
Hrit TET TET
30 7,942 7,942
2,844,318 3,085,058

2,852,260 3,093,000

29 637,209 677,248
31 - 895
637,209 678,143

3,489,469 3,771,143

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 173 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2017 and
are signed on its behalf by:

TSE WING CHIU RICKY
K
DIRECTOR
EF

B EE2017F5 A228 it IR 3 K F69FE
173E 2B HE  WH T ESRERESR:

KOON HO YAN CANDY
BEAR
DIRECTOR
EF

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A 7

Annual Report 2016/17 F %k 7 3



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2017

ELE2017F3A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ERARRER
Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital  Translation Special ~ Contributed luati i controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
B& RAEE BARE EifE BHGE BARBR REERRE NXEMRRR ESpi Nt FERER ag
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
AT AT Er FEr T T#r TEr T T AT AT FEr
10te ) rote ) (rote ) (noteq)
(Hita) s (He) (Hitd)
At 1 Aprl 2015 01554718 7942 218330 196,565 1,468 9,800 220937 28,086 40,905 2,248,181 2972214 922,585 3,894,799
Bxchange difference on translation of AERMEECESER
foreign operations - - - (3456) - - - - - (3456) - (3456)
Change in far value of available-for-sale LEREI A TEEY
investments - - - - - - 33407 - - 33407 4,051 37458
Released on disposal of avalable-for-sale HEMHERERRR
investments - - - - - - 57915) - - (57,919) - (7915)
Reclassifcation of ransiaion reseve to profit B & EXEL
or loss upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries 73R & - - - 189 - - - - - 189 - 189
Reclassfication of transiaion reseve to profit ~ tHEHELFJE
orloss upon disposal of subsidiaries EREEE - - - 1,799 - - - - - 1799 - 1,799
Reclassification of investment revaluation A
reserve to profit or loss upon deemed
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - (2469) - - (2469 - (2469
Share of other comprehensive expense HEBERFZ
of associates Ab2ERR - - - (2654) - - (7.281) - - (0941) - (0941)
Fair value gain on leasehold properties BEONFEAZRE
upon transer to investment properties 2 ATEkRE - - - - - - - 28,967 - 28967 - 28967
Profit for the year TERET - - - - - - - - 138936 138,936 26,706 164,642
Total comprehensive (expense) income TEEZRE (FR)
for the year WS - - - (4122) - - (34.264) 28,967 138936 129517 29,757 159,274
Proceeds received from rights issue of RE-EREA HK
asubsidary HEE - - - - - - - - (7%9) o 1% 19239
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RALEHBLR - - - - - - - - - - (L1455 (1,1455%6)
2015 final divicend paid frofe 12) St
- - - - - - - - (7942) (794 - (794
B . . - - - - - 6731 673 e (10T
At 31 March 2016 H016E3A31H 7942 218330 196,565 (2,654) 9,800 220937 6,178 69872 2,378,386 3,093,000 - 3,093,000
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRIRREE
Investment Property
Share Share Capital Translation Special Contributed { i
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
i R ety ERfE HHIRE HBARE REEMER NXEMER ESpi 2]
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FEr T T TEr AT AT AT AT AT TEr
rote ) 1ote ) 1ote )
(Hzb) (W) (Hitd)
At 31 March 2016 016537318 7942 218330 196,565 (2654) 9,800 220987 (6,178) 69,872 2,378,386 3,093,000
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale investments UHHERAZATERD - - - - - - 2383 - - 2383
Released on disposal of avalable-for-sale investments & A&k E R A EE - - - - - - (43989) - - 43989)
Reclassffication adjustment upon impairment loss of RIEHERERERZ
avallable-for-sale investments ENAERE - - - - - - 252376 - - 25,376
Share of other comprehensive (expense) income of AERERAZ
associates A (FZ)RA - - - 2739 - - 8560 - - 5827
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - - - - - (243,846) (243,846)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year TEERE (R W88 - - - (2733 - - 18,781 - (243,846) 232,798)
2016 fnal dividend paid ot 12) BHOGERERE (1 - - - - - - - - (194 (194
At 31 March 2017 R01753A310 7942 218330 196,565 (5,387) 9,800 220937 7603 69872 2,126,598 2,852,260

74
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERREHR
For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

Notes:

@)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies
forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (ii) share of
the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property, plant
and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from the
transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid lease
payments and property, plant and equipment to investment properties
in prior years and (jii) the transfer to accumulated profits upon deemed
disposal of subsidiaries in prior years and during the year ended 31
March 2016.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN = B=
GERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Taxation recognised in profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of premium and
other expenses charged on a life
insurance policy
Dividend income from listed
investments
(Gain) loss on changes in fair
value of investment properties

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on changes in fair value
of investments held for trading

Loss on fair value change of financial

assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss (gain) on change in fair value of
derivative component of convertible

notes
Results attributable to interests
in associates

Impairment loss on available-for-sale

investment

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries

Write-off of deposits for property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital

Increase in properties held for development

for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in deposits and prepayments
for acquisition of properties held for
development for sale

(Increase) decrease in investments held
for trading

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in statutory deposits

Increase in trade and other payables

KEREEHZHERE
AEEZ (BE) M
Tk

RIBRERZ IR
M BUA
M BRI
R 2ITE
ASREZRE N
H At 52 2 # 3

ETREZBRBWA

BREME 2 R VE
25 (fm) Bia
HERIRHEREZ
Wegs
HEME - BE R
Rz s
FIEEEREZAFE
B2 EE (W)
BAHER ABmZ

2 AFERBIR
(35)

g N ARG EE
AHHERERERR

HEMBAR 2 EHE

BAHEMNBRARZ
18

ME BEMRREZ
M

LEELEEHAZ
KRERERE

FEH & BRI

FIELEMER D
WRERHELEERYE
B MIAN g

FEREERE ()R

B 5 b oAt & W SR IE S AN
& W SR 48R
& I & R N
EEREZIE I
B 5 N B At FE A SRIRSE N

7 6 Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE AR A 5

Annual Report 2016/17 R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT F&T
(243,846) 164,642
23,961 32,326
(23,277) (17,975)
17,203 25,157
1,636 829
280 280
(10,171) (6,252)
(21,877) 33,238
(43,989) (57,915)
(115) (188)
8,773 (72,161)
2,328 38,504
11,003 (680)
371,364 (559,147)
25,376 -
- 10,822

— 553,916

- 5,529
118,649 150,925
(202,813) (25,249)
267,145 385,072
- (6,000)
(143,547) 236,737
(18,368) (2,972)
- 869
(106,454) (141,192)
(205) -
8,269 13,939




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

Cash (used in) from operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Overseas tax paid

Dividend received from investments
held for trading

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Redemption of financial assets
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds received from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Interest received

Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Acquisition of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Additions of investment properties

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisition of convertible notes

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Proceeds received from rights issue of
shares of a subsidiary (net of expenses)

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year, represented by bank balances
and cash

(AR)RAERZZHRE
ENBEBFEH
EfEsMRIR
FIFEEREZEWEE

(AR)RERZEH

WEFR

KERAEH IR RE
BBl A FET A
B SRAE

HEAHEEREZ
S 5RI8
FEHA
AftEEREZ
R ES)
HEWE R &
R Z TR
BALRRFEFTA
Ba s SREE
BARHLERE

BAME BEK
B

BABVEE
NEREWE
BRHOENB QR
BARRERIE
BAME BEX
BEZENES
HEMHBAE

kE (AR)REESZ
BE R

TEAREFHIALKE
BTN
EERITEE
BT RIS
BATE
5% 5 2 BB AR 15

FISECE (IR FIX)

RRREERS 2R FR
IE:%?%EEE{fiﬂD R A)
E%%@&%Iﬁﬁ@
SMNEMEREH 2 FE

FRAESZRERAE -
FIRITRESBNRS

NOTES
HreE

33

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
(77,324) 612,129
(42,392) (12,052)
= 92

6,508 1,945
(113,208) 601,930
675,339 255,000
350,062 78,159
18,246 15,791
3,663 4,307
120 188
(861,000) (631,500)
(21,360) (15,232)
(7,636) (3,091)
(500) -
(30) (119)

= (447,163)

= (60,480)

= (1,280)

= 22,284
156,904 (783,136)
446,255 823,239
(449,211) (1,166,301)
(19,657) (26,204)
(7,942) (7,942)

= 192,395
(30,555) (184,813)
13,141 (366,019)
12,332 378,520
= (169)
25,473 12,332
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in notes 42 and 16, respectively.

As at 1 April 2014, the Group had 40.96% equity interest in the
issued share capital of Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”).
Eminence and its subsidiaries (“EE Group”) had been accounted for
as subsidiaries of the Group in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 as the management
of the Company considered that the Group had control over
EE Group. On 12 June 2015, Eminence completed an issue of
convertible note to an independent third party and this resulted in
the Group’s effective equity interest in EE Group, assuming the full
conversion of convertible note by the convertible note holder, being
decreased from 40.96% to 34.41%. Based on the assessment of
facts and circumstances, the directors of the Company considered
that the other shareholders have increased influence to the decision
of relevant activities of and voting power over Eminence, and
concluded that the Group lost its control over EE Group as from
12 June 2015. As such, Eminence and its subsidiaries became
associates of the Group with effect from 12 June 2015 and have
since been accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Accordingly, EE Group was presented as discontinued operations in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

GENERAL (Continued)

In the current year, Eminence issued 222,222,222 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each upon a convertible note holder, who is not connected
with the Group, exercising its conversion rights. On 22 September
2016, Eminence issued 223,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each by placing to six placees not connected with the Group. On
27 February 2017, Eminence issued 350,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees not connected with Group.
Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest over EE Group decreased
from 40.96% as at 1 April 2016 to 23.92% as at 31 March 2017.

Details of changes of interest in Eminence of the Group are set out
in note 16.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments?

Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments?

Leases®

Clarification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts™

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

Disclosure initiative’

Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses’

Transfers of investment property?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFF &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. EAFIIEBUBRELEARBITAX ([FE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

MBmELERN]) (&)
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BE —RUPETRBEUARSREERE
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EASERBNT BB REERFSEE

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurements”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2017, the application of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have an impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s convertible notes
are currently classified as receivable component and the whole
convertible notes will be measured at fair value upon the application
of HKFRS 9. In addition, the expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported as the timing of revenue recognition may be affected
and the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to variable
consideration constraints, and more disclosures relating to revenue
is required. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group shall recognise an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$1,740,000 as disclosed in note
35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the financial effect until the directors of the Company complete a
detailed review.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE AR A 5

8 4 Annual Report 2016/17 4 5

R BB BRELENRETAE (8
MBmELEN]) (&)

BRMBRELRF1655[HE] (&)

BEE ARG 2 - BERIAKA (&
THISME SRS HR R 5T 8 KOR (B & 18
e YHEMENENREREMmIEL
HE-HERBENRREEREGFEAX
MR EFE-ER HERER (EFE
)RR REEFIEARBEERTNTEE
HHEB -BRESRENDRME  NEEB A
SEMEAHEE L RS BAREYENME
B BENEEFRZIARERER
Hib@LMERBLI| BEERDR - NIE
REBMHRE LB 165RE  AHEMEER
BENREFE/EDEEANE RS -
W2 RBERDR

RBEBFBSTENFEITHR FEERAEE
ERABANEE T 2 EREZHLTE
NHEHERERER - REENREAERER
BERE-EAEEMBHREEREIHIE
BYZREEEN D RBELBEES RFX
SEREEBEIRAZINEECERE XA
—TIEREENEEEERTA

HARAGRETEAR EEMERSE
L1 ABURE BB HERIE175A
HHBAAWEF 2R WRERTEHBEAL
HESBAKEHEYREHE-

AN BB REERF165E B RBEZ
B FE o

201783 A318 - I KT 7354 58 A & [E 1
A AE1,740,000/8 7T AT Al EEEAL & A
ERE- NPT HBERN ZELHEBSFTEE
B BRE LR E1EBETHEN TR
I BIEE A ENERE B RS %8
F1emE A RASCHEENEHIN &
EE K eRTBEXSHERREEFRAENR
FEFEREE o FERFRE AT REE N X
Frifiat 2 2y RIBBEHEFE AW £
EEERFERN 2 S BEEREAE
et N EE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

86

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continuead)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote holders;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between () the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”, or
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations,
the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from
the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses
resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Sale of goods and properties held for development for sale

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the purchasers. Deposits and instalments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases
is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal of retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are measured
at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired separately
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of intangible asset
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including purchase
costs of the properties for development and development costs, are
capitalised and included as properties held for development until
such time when they are completed.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified
under current assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial assets
s (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including receivable component in convertible notes, deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy, trade and other receivables,
loans receivable, and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derivative component in convertible note

Derivative component in convertible note is initially recognised at
fair value and is classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period with resulting gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueqd)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and loans receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When an item of trade and other receivables or loans
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and secured
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7

TEREFEE(F)
SRMIA(#F)
EHEERRITA (&)
THEIEE

SREE (BEESREMMMNREREE
HRERTTIS B ) B EL 14 SR AR B IS S 1 8 5
WA -

e

ERNFERTESRB BB AR
DB B RN AR TE  BRAN X
SR A BT BA ERN AR F I (HE
) 8 MR A SRR SR (B
BENSD RIEBRERMNRER 2 ERAR
BT XHRAREMEEXFE) TEER
TR VIR HE R 2 B T FHE 2 FIJ K o

MERSIREIRA R EERER
BUE R

ENEERDRSREZENC M
CREECERLAEEEKERTHEE
BARZBARM AR N OFRER  BIEUH
EReREE RIERAEREER &
ERmERDKEEBRREREEEREMD
2EWEERZ Bt ERER @Mz E
BTN R PR

ERAMAK 2R R RS TSR3
B8 B A AT UBOL R - BUEER
e MAEEAERDNRAMNAEL 2H
HIB AR R

101

Annual Report 2016/17 %R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and intangible asset with
indefinite useful lives

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueqd)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme or the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Annual Report 2016/17 £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong are depreciable, they are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from these investment properties
located in Hong Kong, the management determined that the
presumption that these investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

TEREFHERFREMT ZEBRR

FERE R M RSP 2 AR B & SHHURES - AR
RERARBEIREEMRRERSTEE
KB E 2 BREE T E A E - At R RER
Et RAERRR D ENBELR K HE AR
Fx=-BRERTEARZRULEMET -

shiERT RARRE R M AE h R T - A& AT
(EWPACTESZ A LR E eSS e h
At BATEIRERR - ARME 2R 2 AN HATE) B R SR A
- BURME B B R B R R BRI g oR o

FERS R BR 2 TR HE

gkt (RTH)N AT REEKVER
AEBGBRERBIET REGREMFERRD
R eBEREATEZ T RHE -

(a) KREWFWELHE

A ERAATFERAAENRENE
EEMRER BB ERELEREEEM
5 EEECRAIAREZREMES
BARR EAREEVRBENRE
WMERTIE BEXIFREXBRZR
ERER VBRI B ME B S HB AR
DREBENRNEFRAFE-EL - #
BEAKBURNEBZIREMEMEL
BEERIAR  BIRERTERBIHEN
AN FERAGFEZRENEZR
R IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

FTEEFHERFREMT ZEBRR
(%)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 4.
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

TREM ZEERR

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

NTREBRRZEEMR ARNEHEH
Rz B EEMF 2 T BHR  ZEMbE
FHEAEEHEREEMBEZREAER T
—EFBFREHRENARZERER -

(a) Investment properties (a REY*
Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for HAAREE EEMMBREMSZA
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated FETUFE - AEEHEEEEEB
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and B AT ETEETEENHERIMN R
inputs for fair value measurements. A o
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment A AREE R EMEN DT ER - RE
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the {55 FA ] 1S RO T 5 ) B SRR - Wil
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not BEIRBA AEEZE-—HEIS
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified B ERITE AN B 2 R E YT
valuers to perform valuation of the Group’s investment HE-RMEHAR EERERE S
properties. At the end of the reporting period, the management BEERITEYEE BERATES
works closely with the independent firm of qualified valuers to BEZEEERNREA -WEEATE
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques BESAEE FRARRESRER
and inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is a PRE FHAEEAREIREMERN
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of TG AR E R R AR B R R M e
the fluctuations will be reported to directors of the Company. 1547 5% ©
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
is disclosed in note 15.

(b) Impairment assessment of loans receivable (b) EWEFZHETFRE

108

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of loans
receivable, which amounted to HK$308,854,000 (2016:
HK$202,400,000) at 31 March 2017. Appropriate impairment
loss for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the amount is not
recoverable.

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is estimated
based on credit reviews of the outstanding balances from
loans receivable and an evaluation of the amounts expected
to be recovered with reference to financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of the borrowers. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment may arise. No
impairment allowance on loans receivable is made for both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 4.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) (#&)
(c) Determination of net realisable value of properties held for (c) EBEZTHEHERRYE FHFEHEYRE
development for sale/properties held for sale 2 OB FE

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong and with an
aggregate sum of HK$704,625,000 (2016: HK$757,040,000) at
31 March 2017, with reference to current market environment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate éﬁzﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁtﬂﬁ—lmﬁg‘ﬁo
that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net B H A SR AR AR - E R A]
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated WeEleE o BRARERNERTER &
irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss when EfhFT IR ENDERER G ER
the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of ZA B RISELERRYME
net realisable value are determined based on the evidence VEEM TR R SR Bl 2 £ 58 o
available at the time the estimates are made, and the amounts ERGHSERTHATAEER  BUP
of the properties held for development for sale/properties held BERERENE SELEMEZA
for sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised FIFERMLIIE ML eHEEEL R
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or SNRE S EAT B RER ZRE

an increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale and additional
write-down or reversal of write-down previously recognised

may be required.

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable in respect of property sales, rental income from property
leasing, income from loan financing and building management fee
income during the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
continuing operations is as follows:

Continuing operations:

Property sales

Rental income

Income from loan financing
Building management fee income

5. ®¥EH

RSB R FREMT ZEBRR

FEETFHEHAEEREB ZFED
EERWE B EHEWEER2017
F3A31H 2 84558 4704,625,000/5 70
(20164F : 757,040,000/% 7T )
WETIBRR 2 EHNIEAEEERRZ

T2 E

EEFEFANERE KELENERS
WA REERBERARBETERERA
Z B ERRIA Z R - A EERE FE
RERB 2 EEBOMWT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

BEREER:
Y HE 456,601 599,484
AL A 51,664 55,007
RKEERBERA 20,376 23,144
BFEBRBIA 834 881
529,475 678,516

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM?”), for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments from continuing
operations include (i) property investments, (ii) property

development, (jii) investment in securities and (iv) loan financing.

(@) Segment revenue and results

ARERDERDRRANENE  2HER
SEZ IBRERREERTREE (12
RERARE ) 2ER DEFRERRN
RIS 2 AR - W IR iR A 2 H 2 - IR
EEREA AN EEER LR ER-

AEEREFELEER 2 IEERERD TS
BIE: (VELRE (VEEE- (|||)u43ff&§
MUVEE T

(a) TEEXBRFXE

110

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results BEEREMD AN AEE 2 & HERE
by operating and reportable segment: NMEENT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B Z2017F3H31HILFE
Continuing operations: FrRAEAE ST
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing Consolidated
MERE MERR EFRE EXmE w"E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FET FAT
SEGMENT REVENUE DEERE
External sales INRSHE 52,498 456,601 - 20,376 529,475
RESULT Ed
Segment result NEREE 40,049 66,993 50,921 19,167 177,130
Unallocated corporate income  EHE 2 A FIRA 376
Unallocated corporate expenses ENE 7 A B % (8,824)
Results attributable to NS 3
interests in associates PMEEE (371,364)
Finance costs BERAK (17,203)
Loss before taxation FRFLATE R
(continuing operations) (BEELER) (219,885)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF &
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. TEER(#&)

(a)

DEEEBEREE (B

B 2201643531 H IFF &

Continuing operations: AT
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing  Consolidated
MERE MEEE HHEE EmE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE PEERE
External SRS 55,888 599,484 - 23,144 678,516
Inter-segment* AEEBREE 416 - - - 416
56,304 599,484 - 23,144 678,932
Elimination ik (416)
678,516
RESULT S
Segment result NEEE 6,924 91,577 70,328 21,297 190,126
Unallocated corporate income %ﬁ’ﬁ@EZ’A WA 137
Unallocated corporate expenses EA A2 ARIFEY (7,429)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  tH& KB 2 7] 2 518 (10,822)
Results attributable to interests 4 A RIRER A 15 ¥4
in associates 559,147
Finance costs RE AR (23,815)
Profit before taxation BR A AR
(continuing operations) (BEEZ%K) 707,344
* Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. * DEEBRIHEARITHISE X5
&

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of certain interest income, corporate
expenses, loss on disposal of subsidiaries, results attributable
to interests in associates and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

R BB 2 & R U BB FESPT A AR £
Bzt BERARR - D BEEREKRED
MEEZEN  EPRENEETH
BN REIAX HEMNBRARZE
B BMERARBEOHEEARBENR
e LAlLFFEMEREERREZR
ERERNERRRFE22E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BZE2017F8H31HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER(F)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) PEEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BEEREBMIBANAEB 2 EER
by operating and reportable segment: BfEWT:
At 31 March 2017 R201743531H
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing Consolidated
MERE NERRE EFRE EXmE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FE FE FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DHEE 1,635,210 795,264 505,280 311,248 3,247,002
Interests in associates A UNE L 586,555
Bank balances and cash BITEBERE 25,473
Unallocated corporate assets ~ EDE 2 AAIEE 12,319
Consolidated assets RREE 3,871,349
LIABILITIES BfE
Segment liabilities HHEEE 24,617 66,832 289 2,700 94,438
Secured bank borrowings BHEABTEE 899,482
Tax payable FERIHIE 24,381
Unallocated corporate liabilities  Z/H &2 A5 & & 788
Consolidated liabilities HABE 1,019,089

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

6. ZTEER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) b) PEEERAE(E)
At 31 March 2016 JR201643531H
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing  Consolidated
MERE MERR BHRE ERRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NREE 1,616,528 831,427 497,285 202,904 3,148,144
Interests in associates B AR 952,092
Bank balances and cash FIIEHERE 12,332
Unallocated corporate assets ~ ENE z AFEE 12,283
Consolidated assets RAEE 4,124,851
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities SBEE 26,210 59,631 30 114 85,985
Secured bank borrowings BEARITEE 902,021
Tax payable EfI A 4,917
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 895
Unallocated corporate liabilities  EH &z A5 & (& 1,033
Consolidated liabilities GaBf 1,031,851
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and FRESIE S ERRIA ML BRAEIR DI M

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interests in associates, unallocated
bank and cash balances and assets used jointly by
operating and reportable segments.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than secured bank borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which
operating and reportable segments are jointly liable.

il

BREf 2 DR  EOBCIRTT MR
SREBREERZHRD BHARE
RzEBEN BEEEDRER

BREHA -

FREEIPRITEE  BAHIEA R
RHRARBARKEERZHRDH
KFEE BB FAEREES

REEERE2HRD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HEER(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) EthnEEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B 220173831 HIEFE
Continuing operations: TS
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing  Unallocated Consolidated
WERE WEBRR EHRE EXmE EAE &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the EREENEEEY
measure of segment assets ~ AIEEBEIECEE
or segment result:
Capital additions BARE 6,757 505 904 - - 8,166
Depreciation of property, NE BERRXELTE
plant and equipment 728 844 64 - - 1,636
Gain on changes in fair value &M% 2 A FE
of investment properties ZElin (21,877) - - - - (21,877)
Loss on changes in fair HEEEREZ
value of investments ATEEHER
held for trading - - 8,773 - - 8,773
Loss on fair value changes of R AT Bt A& 2
financial assets designated =~ & REEZATE
asat FVTPL 2YEA - - 2,328 - - 2,328
For the year ended 31 March 2016 B 220163531 H I FE
Continuing operations: AT RS
Property Property Investment Loan
investments  development in securities financing Unallocated ~ Consolidated
MERE MELR BHRE EXRE BHRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the EREENEEREY
measure of segment assets D BEBEIEZEH:
or segment result:
Capital additions BEARRE 104 3,085 - - - 3,189
Depreciation of property, N BERRXEINE
plant and equipment 263 539 - - - 802
Loss on changes in fair value  #EME 2z ATE
of investment properties 2HER 33,238 - - - - 33,238
Gain on changes in fair value  H{EEEHRE 2
of investments held for ATEEHNE
trading - - (27,604) - - (27,604)
Loss on fair value changes of AT (Bt A2
financial assets designated ~ ©EEEZ AFE
as at FVTPL EHEE - - 38,504 - - 38,504
KEEBREEFRA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BHZE2017F3A31HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER(F)
(d) Geographical information (d HESEEHR
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of AEBZEBNURES (FE) -
domicile).
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from RINRE P 2 R B 5 AR E B R 518
external customers based on location of its customers and RS S NIREBE 2Rt @
information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding B AEE ZIERBEE (T
available-for-sale investments, convertible notes, derivative AHEERE TTRIRER TBRRE
component of convertible notes, loans receivable and deposit B2iTEK D  BRERTIARASRE
and prepayments for a life insurance policy), analysed by the ZHERBEBANR)ZERDT
geographical area in which the assets are located, are as
follows:
Revenue from Carrying amounts
external customers of non-current assets
REIREFZEXE FREBEEZRERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEIL
Hong Kong &% 529,475 676,554 2,226,596 2,572,633
Others HAh - 1,962 - -
529,475 678,516 2,226,596 2,572,633
() Information about major customers ) FEEFZER
Revenues from continuing operations from customers of EPREEFEERA B AL TR
the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total B10% A E 2 REFBEE X2
revenue of the Group are as follows: R
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Customer A’ ZEA 57,000 -
Customer B! =FB N/A2 106,923
T i F2
1 Revenue from property development. ! REMHEBERE LS
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of 2 AEEXRTEARAEEAE
the total revenue of the Group. H¥EEBE10%A o

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIBEE AR A 7 1 —I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERE
Continuing operations: FFEAA SR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 20,013 23,815
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of MR EBEREEERNMEZ
qualifying assets T (2,810) -
17,203 23,815
8. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 8. REVERKEXEKZAFEE (FIB)HEF

OPERATIONS

(Loss) profit for the year from continuing

operations has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a))
Other staff costs, including retirement
benefits costs

Total staff costs

Amortisation of premium and other expenses
charged on a life insurance policy

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of properties recognised as expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Write-off of deposits for property, plant and
equipment

and after crediting to other income:

Dividend income from listed investments
Interest income from
Accretion from receivable component of
convertible notes
Deposit and prepayments for
a life insurance policy
Bank and others

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FEIL
REBELEEBZ
NEE (BE)RF
el
EEMe (HiE10a)) 19,436 23,675
HAb B TR B35
RORAE TR 13,192 11,434
B Tk A4 ER 32,628 35,109
BERASREZIREB R
HAh R sE 2 B8 280 280
ZEETE & 2,100 1,899
EHRARY 2
L ESDFN 291,442 385,423
M B REEITE 1,636 802
M R E KRR
2R S s - 5,529
REMUAGTA
KB EMRE ZREWA 10,171 6,251
FEWARE
AR IR PRI 75 2
BAEE 8,984 3,934
ASREZRES REMNRK
376 376
RIT R ELAD, 13,917 9,099
Hj%%% R R & 2 Wz 115 188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

As set out in note 1, the Group lost control over EE Group upon
completion of issue of convertible note to an independent third
party by Eminence on 12 June 2015. Accordingly, Eminence and
its subsidiaries ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group as from 12
June 2015 and they became associates of the Group with effect
from the same date and EE Group has since been accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting.

The management of the Group considers EE Group as a separate
component of the Group. Accordingly, the operations of EE Group
are presented as discontinued operations during the year ended 31
March 2016.

Loss from the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March
2016 is analysed as follows.

BRILGEXRE BAHENBARZER

TS ATEL - ANEEH2015F6 5128 = 1L
EBITAIRREIE T B E =B TREK
EE SIS ESEBR G B mILbE
NEWEB AR B2015F6 8128 F |- AR %
Bz BARREMRR A K AR EE 2 5
ENRIRA S ILPEEEREZREMSRE
LAREZS VR TIBR o

AEECvERERARLUNEEB ALEE
ZAERIE D o AL - #22016F3 318 [FF
E alUtEEE 2 KEXEBEIA/EKRIE

KEBKEREER 2B E2016F3H31H
LHFEEZBERIHIT -

2016
HK$'000
FET
Discontinued operations BRIEEEEK
Revenue HETE 14,858
Cost of goods sold and services rendered SHE MR MRS A (10,307)
4,551
Other income H U A 633
Distribution and selling expenses FEETSIDWIN (205)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (4,654)
Gain on changes in fair value of investments FEEBRREZATE
held for trading 2y 44,557
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BEHENBARZEIE (553,916)
Finance costs BMEKA (1,342)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations REBRIREER 2 AFEEBHE (510,376)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL 9. CAILEC(NK HEHENRBEATRZEE

OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (%)
2016
HK$°000
TFET
Loss for the year from discontinued operations REEBRIEEEEBL 2
has been arrived at after charging: NEZBED IR :
Staff costs, including retirement benefits costs B TAAS - BB R IRIE FIRK AR 2,195
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET B € 3
Cost of inventories and properties recognised EERBRZ 2 FEMRARYZE
as expense 10,307
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YE BMELREEITE 27
Exchange loss i 5 &8 25
and after crediting: WEFTA:
Dividend income from listed investments KB EMRE ZBRBWA 1
Bank and other interest income HRIT R EAMFEUA 632
2016
HK$°000
TFET
Cash flows from discontinued operations: REERIEEEBRIBEERE
Net cash flows used in operating activities AR ig e RemnEFE (82,940)
Net cash flows from investing activities REREGESH RS REFRE 1,183
Net cash flows from financing activities REMEGSH RS REFRE 324,686
242,929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

BRILGEXRE BAHENBARZER
(%)

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL 9.
OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of EE Group as at the date SUCEEERGALERBCEERARE

of deemed disposal were as follows:

TE2HEBMT

12 June 2015

20156 H12H
HK$'000
FEIT
Property, plant and equipment EN S 608
Investment properties HEMHE 924,531
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 24,012
Loans receivable JEWE 93,640
Properties held for development for sale BIEHERREDE 523,654
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of BARBIELEERYEZ
properties held for development for sale Be RFERRK 90,848
Investments held for trading FIEEEIRE 132,373
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAEWFIE 22,485
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 447,163
Trade and other payables B 5 & EMENFKIA (28,892)
Convertible note AR E IR (11,152)
Tax payable JE 18 (6,909)
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITIER (292,743)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIARE (16,732)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFRE 1,902,886
Net loss on deemed disposal: REHEZBEFH:
Net assets disposed of HEEEFH (1,902,886)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR = 1,145,526
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of REREESINBRAGIREEFEY
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified RitER ERAERENOEEER
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control of
subsidiaries (189)
Reclassification of equity component of convertible REREESIWE QSR RREER
note to profit or loss upon loss of control of BmK D EFR D HEER
subsidiaries 7,343
Reclassification of investment revaluation REREESINBATRIREEHHEE
reserve to profit or loss upon loss of control of BEOEEER
subsidiaries 2,469
Fair value of the equity interest retained in EE RERSILCEEE 2 RAEZR D TE -
Group, based on share price of Eminence BESLGENEALEBRZRKRE
at the date of deemed disposal 193,821
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries HRELEMB AT ZEE (553,916)
Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal: RAEHEZR M F5E:
Bank balances and cash disposed of &2 IRITEBEIE S (447,163)
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EX EETHAZRESE ML

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@) FHRESEHezER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2017F3A31B L FEARARES
year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows: & EFIEEAT -
Non-executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
HTES FATES BUHTES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Lai Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan Chiu, Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA Bk EAR Akl RER 133 #ES BEE ag
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 T TE% FET FE7 FET TE% FET FE7
Fees L - - - 140 140 140 140 140 700
Other emoluments o
- salaries and other benefits —Zr4 & £ ft 427 1,002 4,038 480 - - - - - 5,610
- performance related -HEREM Ke
bonuses - 13,000 - - - - - - 13,000
- retirement benefits —RIVERIEH I
schemes contributions 18 90 18 - - - - - 126
Total directors’ emoluments  EZ 4 A%E 1,110 17,128 498 140 140 140 140 140 19,436
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2016F3A31IB L FEARARES
year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: B& BT -
Non-executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
HiEz FHiTES BUkHiES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Lai Jong Toui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan Chiu, Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA RS/ BAM EipS k33 #EE #ER BEE i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET T FET FET FET
Fees E3hg - - - 162 162 140 140 140 744
Other emoluments Efoiie
- salaries and other benefts —# & K E 1 EF 1,230 4,116 472 - - - - - 5818
- performance related -REREHE #e
bonuses - 17,000 - - - - - - 17,000
- retirement benefits — BRI B
schemes contributions 12 81 20 - - - - - 113
Total directors’ emoluments £ £l 2% 1,242 21,197 492 162 162 140 140 140 23675
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two (2016: two) directors. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2016: three) highest paid individuals, not
being directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF
Contribution to retirement benefits RORIEFIFH SR
schemes

10. EX HETHAZRESZHE (&)

(a)

(b)

ERESMES2ER (&)

BRANCETR/ARABZ BFEITHRAR
REA T e R BRIERERET
BARE TR 2 IR -

PRBRZATEEHETERRER
BAARR RAREER 2R -

PR 2 ERTEEME IR REE
ERARRBIMBARERZ IR -

PRBRZBLIFITEFTHEEER
BEER/DRBESR 2R -

FHEEME2EHR

FRAEERARSHALTEERE
(20165F : M5 ) EE - =% (2016
F =)W EEZ R AL 2
oy I

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAET
3,851 3,905
86 88

3,937 3,993

The emoluments of these employees fall within the following
bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 #% 221,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% 7T %2,000,000/% 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T 22,500,000/ 7T

ZEREREZHMENFTIIEE:

Number of individuals

BEAR
2017 2016
2 2
1 -
3 3

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’' 10. EE EHETHARREEZHE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (Continued) b) EFHREEHMESER (Z)
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RREFE AEBLEZNMe TE
to the directors and the other three (2016: three) highest paid ERHEM=F (2016F : =R ) &g
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group ZAT ERMASREMARERRZ
or as compensation for loss in office. In addition, during both RENERREBE Z@E LN R
years, no director waived any emoluments. MEFE BEEEHETMME -
11. TAXATION CHARGE 11. BEMAX
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Continuing operations: BESEER:
The charge (credit) comprises: Fis (5 A) B3
Hong Kong Profits Tax FENGEH
Charge for the year NEZHRZ 25,550 31,619
Overprovision for prior years BAEFEHEBERE (694) (168)
24,856 31,451
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction H b BA S| 2 Bi1E
Charge for the year REERZ = 141
Overprovision for prior years W FE R = (39)
- 102
24,856 31,553
Deferred taxation R IA
(Credit) charge for the year (note 31) NEE (5t X (B77231) (895) 773
23,961 32,326

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRERNE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZ2017F3731H 1 FF
11.  TAXATION CHARGE (Continued) 1. BEMAX (&)
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per the REFEHIAR X B & B M EH A 2 E S
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive REAZHERWOT
income as follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
(Loss) profit before taxation (from continuing  BREZ AT (518 % ﬂ
operations) (RERBELEEL) (219,885) 707,344
Tax (credit) charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax 32 & &S5 i £16.5%
at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (2016%F : 16.5% )
HIE (FEA) B (36,281) 116,712
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMBRZ 2 MIBTE
for tax purposes 7,683 18,760
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIBAZHIBTE
for tax purposes (7,339) (111,847)
Tax effect of results attributable to interests BENRERIEEEZ
in associates HMIETE 61,275 7,925
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIEEBE CMIBELE 932 1,836
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously BB RERHIEEIE
not recognised MIBFE (1,615) (853)
Overprovision for prior years BAFEBREEE (694) (207)
Taxation charge for the year REFHIAR X 23,961 32,326
12. DIVIDEND 12. KE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Dividend recognised as distribution RERAEBRREZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid for financial year H ZE2016F3A31H L BFE
ended 31 March 2016 of HK$0.10 per ZENRERE RER010E T
share (2016: HK$0.10 per share for (20164F : & £2015%F3A31H
financial year ended 31 March 2015) I BFEE RER0.10ET) 7,942 7,942
Dividend proposed REEE
Proposed final dividend for financial year HZE 201 7HE3ASIH MR E
ended 31 March 2017 of HK$0.05 per KREARR B AFAR0.058 T
share (2016: HK$0.10 per share for (2016$ CEE201643A31H
financial year ended 31 March 2016) IEWBFE REAK0.10/ET) 3,971 7,942
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
12. DIVIDEND (Continued) 12 RE(£)
The final dividend of HK$0.05 per share in respect of the year ended BREE 22017F3A318 L FE 2 &#0.05
31 March 2017 (2016: HK$0.10 per share) has been proposed by T2 AHIRR & (20164F : & M0.1087T) 2
the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the HARBEZEZ U AREERRBFAE
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general EBRARRABRE 7 B -
meeting.
13. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREARESE (HE)BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share AATIRRFEMNL 2 FREAREE (B8 &
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following FITHRIBA T ERIZTE
data:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
From continuing operations and REBELSEEER
discontinued operations EARIEREEK
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of METETHRERREE (5E)
calculating basic and diluted (loss) AFmE 2 (E1E) &F
earnings per share ((loss) profit (RRABREEEAFE
for the year attributable to (E518) %= F)
owners of the Company) (243,846) 138,936
2017 2016
Number of shares KRB E
Number of shares for the purpose of METEEREARREE (FE)
calculating basic and diluted (loss) BFhE ZBRmHEE
earnings per share 79,420,403 79,420,403
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEr
From continuing operations REFELSCEEL
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic HREBELEEB 2
and diluted (loss) earnings per share TIREARREE (E518) &8 H
from continuing operations sz (E18) &7 (243,846) 675,018
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for BRERREE (B18) BFER 2 5 & EL
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share. fint=Suiwd S IEE
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

13. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SREAREE (FE)ER (&)

(Continuead)

From discontinued operations RECKRIEEEER

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations was HK$6.75 ERIEEEER 2 BREREBEREIR6.75
per share, based on the loss for the year from discontinued B IR EREERLECEEB2FE
operations of HK$536,082,000 and the denominators detailed %?5536 082 OOO/ETE&L/\J:# it FRREAR
above for basic earnings per share. BNz

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the ERBEBE RS AREZLBEER
conversion of the associates’ outstanding convertible notes and AR R 2 AR SRR R R MR B A HL AT
share options since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss FERLREFELEEL 2 BREE-

per share from continuing operations.
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ BERRE

126

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
R -#E
HAME k%t AE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
COST (BN
At 1 April 2015 720154 A81H 39,819 3,291 2,073 45,183
Additions NE - 9 3,082 3,091
Revaluation upon transfer to BRZREELE
investment properties 28,967 - - 28,967
Disposals LE - - (806) (806)
Released on deemed disposal of BELENBQRRER
subsidiaries - (290) (500) (790)
Transfer to investment properties HEEREME (65,467) - - (65,467)
At 31 March 2016 7201693 A31H 3,319 3,010 3,849 10,178
Additions NE - 7,147 489 7,636
Disposals LE - (2,573) (405) (2,9798)
At 31 March 2017 20173 A31H 3,319 7,584 3,933 14,836
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEHTE
At 1 April 2015 2015F4 18 4,906 2,833 1,224 8,963
Provided for the year RFERE 230 92 507 829
Eliminated on disposals o £ e 8 - - (806) (806)
Released on deemed disposal of %3 /A& H &S B A B
subsidiaries - (64) (118) (182)
Transfer to investment properties BREREME (3,667) - - (3,667)
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H 1,469 2,861 807 5,137
Provided for the year REFERE 59 778 799 1,636
Eliminated on disposals 5 B 8 - (2,568) (405) (2,979)
At 31 March 2017 201743 A31H 1,528 1,071 1,201 3,800
CARRYING VALUES FRHEE
At 31 March 2017 201793 A31H 1,791 6,513 2,732 11,036
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H 1,850 149 3,042 5,041
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. YE - BERSE (£)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis according to the following useful lives:
Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or fifty

years, whichever is the shorter
Leasehold improvements, 5 years

furniture, fixtures and

equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

During the year ended 31 March 2016, leasehold properties with a
carrying value of HK$32,833,000 being leased to EE Group were
transferred from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties upon deemed disposal of EE Group. Hence, the
directors of the Company assessed the fair value of these leasehold
properties which are determined based on valuation performed
by an independent firm of qualified professional property valuers
not connected with the Group at the date of transfer, by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties. As
a result, leasehold properties with a fair value of HK$61,800,000
were transferred to investment properties upon change in use of the
properties, evidenced by end of owner-occupation as the Group
entered into an operating lease with EE Group, resulting in an
increase in the property revaluation reserve of HK$28,967,000.

EABRIEWE BELRE HABSER
BIAT ZAEAFEHETENE:

BamE AR 2 F R A+
AR A

B GE. 5%

RE RS

HE 35

RE E2016F3A31H IEFE - NRAHE
SltEEER PRFSILCEEEER
632,833,000 T2 AMERDE - BE
LR EEBREREYE A A QR EE
HEEROYEZ AFE WHREBYA
BIRBEEYEDNEMT2ERETWERKR

B MEEERERBOETZ(HEME
F-Al RETEREREEVERER

BE ARNEEDEG IO EEBT LS
T4 A F 861,800,000 7T 2 T4 ¥ ¢ 88
BEE KN EMESRMESHRHEEL M
28,967,0005% 7T, ©
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e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE
At 1 April 2015
Exchange realignment
Additions
Transferred from leasehold properties (note 74)
Decreased in fair value recognised in profit or loss
Released upon deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (note 9)
Released upon disposal of subsidiaries (note 33)

At 31 March 2016

Additions

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss
Other transfer

At 31 March 2017

15. BEYHE
HK$°000
FET
RFE
7201564 71H 2,756,494
ME H 735 (3,307)
NE 119
ERABEOME (Hit14) 61,800
RiERERZ RAFERD (33,238)
BAEHEWB A RIRRR (F:79)
(924,531)
BB A B R B (H75133) (241,837)
7201643 A31H 1,615,500
NE 30
RBEERZ AFEL M 21,877
Hith g2 5 (9,107)
7201743 H31H 1,628,300

All of the Group’s leasehold interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Al of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2017 and 2016
are situated in Hong Kong. The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 March 2017 and 2016 were arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out as at these dates by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group.

The gain arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$21,877,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: loss of HK$33,238,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REWE (&

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March
AEEBEZRENE ATERIASE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Commercial units 307,200 318,000
AREN
Commercial units 800,900 795,900

Fair value
hierarchy

DYHEER

Level 3

Level 3

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7

Valuation techniques and
key inputs
HERGTREERA

Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property
BERLEA-ERRENEL
MEABERS  LEEE
IURBBEME 2B R

R

Income approach
- term yield

W
— e e

- reversionary yield

—fElER S

TRINTIMMEEREDENRAFEZE
B OLER ERZAERMERBEA) - A
NMiREE A 2 T BREE S DR FHESR
(BIEBIP) 2 A FEFE

Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

EATAREHA HRE

Price per square foot, using market direct ~ The higher the price per
comparables and taking into account of square foot, the higher
location, age and other individual factors, the fair value

which is HK$256,000 per square foot
(2016: HK$265,000 per square foot)

SYHREE RANGEZTLEHER SV
ZELE BREEMERRR 8¥HR A
256,000/ 7T, (20164 : & 77 2 265,000
B

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment
to reflect the conditions of the building,
which is ranged from 2.5% to 3.1%
(2016: from 2.6% to 3.25%)

EHE R LENE L TIETHER
s THESEE Ba kB EE
MERZBE N TH25%E3.1% (2016
F02.6%%3.25% )

The higher the term yield
and reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

& AHERE

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, which is ranged from 2.8% to
3.5% (2016: from 3.1% to 3.5%)

R ZRALENE B THE
ERTSTHES 2 BE R REARE
SRR ZHE T H2.8%ZE35% (2016
FM3.1%%35%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

Investment properties Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs
AEEREZRENE ATERIANE AVEEHR MHERAREIZBA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET

- monthly term rental

-GREHES

- reversionary rental
~EEERES

Residential units - 8,500 Level 3 Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property
BEREABEA-ERAENEL
TSABRRR S RIEHEN
RBEENEMERER
Industrial units 113,300 100,100 Level 3 Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject properties

BREBE-AREENEL
MEUBER S RERENU
RERRBMEZAERER
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15. REWE (&)

Significant unobservable inputs

EATAEEHA

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived
from the average of the rental as stated

in the existing rental agreements, which

is ranged from HK$21 to HK$376 per
square foot (2016: from HK$22 to HK$336

per square foot)

SRENEATHEEHREREROMI
ZTEEEEE §FARNFhHAET
2376/5 70 (20165 : BT RA2ETE

3368 7T)

Market monthly rental rate, which is ranged
from HK$24 to HK$264 per square foot
(2016: from HK$22 to HK$302 per square

foot)

mEEARS EFAIRNFh24ETE264
7 (20165  §F 7 Rei22 8 T 3028

T)

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account of
location, age and other individual factors,
which is HK$15,288 per square foot in

2016

BYHRER RATHERULENER &
8 BRARABERNREZR 120167

FFHR15288F T

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account

of location, age and other individual
factors, which is ranged from HK$5,800
to HK$6,100 per square foot (2016: from
HK$5,100 to HK$5,400 per square foot),
and car park of HK$1,800,000 each

(2016: HK$1,800,000 each)

FFHREE REMBERTLBNEE
VE -BRUREMENRR 8FAR
15,8007 7T 6,100 7T (20164
FHRANFE100ETE540087T) » b
R B 581,800,000 7T (20165 : &1A

1,800,000/ 7T.)

Sensitivity
BBE

The higher the monthly
term rental, the higher
the fair value

The higher the
reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value

AHEDS

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

The higher the price per
square foot and price
per car park, the higher
the fair value

STHREER
shERDE
AFEDE
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

Investment properties
held by the Group

rEEREZRENE

2017

HK$'000

FET

Industrial units 406,900

TEEf

Fair value at 31 March
ATLERIA3NAB

2016
HK$'000
FET

393,000

Fair value
hierarchy

DYEER

Level 3

Valuation techniques and

key inputs
REXTREEHA

Income approach
- term yield

[ON;
—E e

- reversionary yield

— e

- monthly term rental

-GREHES

- reversionary rental

—REEES

15. REWE (&

Significant unobservable inputs

EATAEEHA

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment
to reflect the conditions of the building,
which is 3.1% (2016: 3%)

RS ERALENE L THTHER
Emin AR EE 2 Wa R RBEEY
R 73.1% (20165 : 3% )

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental, which is 3.35% (2016: 3.25%)

ARG ERALENE TS THE
ERMSTHES 2 MERRBARES
[ 2 % - £3.35% (20165 :3.25% )

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived
from the average of the rental as stated in
the existing rental agreements, which is
ranged from HK$9 to HK$12 per square
foot (2016: from HK$9 to HK$12 per
square foot)

BEELSATHESHIRERBHELOMI
ZTEEERE BFARNFHIELE
1287 (20165 : & 7 RAETE12E
)

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account of
location and other individual factor, which
is HK$14 per square foot (2016: HK$13
per square foot)

BEEN EEFES ZEETHITLR
YELBRRERME BREEMERNR
= BYHRA14ET (20165 §FHR
B13ET)

Sensitivity
BBE

The higher the term yield
and reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

BR ATEDE

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

FAEHEBLAR-
AHEDS

The higher the
reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value

EEFREERS

ATEDS

1,628,300

1,615,500

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. BEE QAT ZER

132

As set out in note 1, the Group lost control over EE Group upon
completion of issue of convertible note to an independent third
party by Eminence on 12 June 2015. Accordingly, Eminence and its
subsidiaries ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group as from 12 June
2015 and they became associates of the Group with effect from the
same date. The fair value of the equity interest retained in EE Group
on the date when control was lost amounting to HK$193,821,000
is recognised as the deemed cost of interests in associates. The
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associates’
identifiable assets and liabilities over the deemed cost of the
investment amounted to HK$607,179,000 and is included in results
attributable to interests in associates.

WM FE1RTEL - A EER2015F6 9128 = 1LY
EBITAIBRBRRE T B E =&KX
FHEILCEEE 2T L SILhE
N EE AR B2015F6 8128 F 1 AR E
BB ARKEERBBKARER 2B
BNT - NEREEHEHRRENS I
EE RS 2 N FE A193,821,00008 TTHER 5
B N AR 2R BN - NEE DG &
NEAHBEERBBERATFEFEBNIEE
4 %8/5607,179,000/8 7018 A AN R BIEE D
IEHEE N RIZEEN -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of listed investments REARESILESE R
in associates at date of deemed &N T ETIRE 2 KA
acquisition of EE Group 193,821 193,821
Addition of equity interest upon P L 1 ZE R AR R4 0 2 R e
rights issue of Eminence 209,065 209,065
402,886 402,886
Results attributable to interests BE AR hEE:
in associates:
- At beginning of the year —REFH] 549,206 -
— Partial disposal of equity interest —HEHNER (363,721) -
- Gain on bargain purchase at date of — R RWEEE AR A2
deemed acquisition of associates M Y - 607,179
— Share of loss and other —DMEEE R
comprehensive loss H b2 EEE (1,816) (57,973)
— At end of the year —RER 183,669 549,206
586,555 952,092
Fair value of listed investments in B NR EMIEE 2 AT E
associates 62,654 152,976

Annual Report 2016/17 4E R
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B 2201793531 HIFFE
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. BE QT zER (&)

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in Eminence 720174 20163 A31H  AE BN = L

and the following principal subsidiaries of Eminence: PERTIEILCEZ X ZWBARHEEE
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of nominal value of

establishment issued share capital/ registered

Name of associates and operations capital held by the Group Principal activities
AEERE
AL BT BRITRE/
BENRAR REEHH R A EE L5 TEXH
2017 2016
Eminence Bermuda 23.92% 40.96%  Investment holding
mltE BRE REER
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands 23.92% 40.96%  Property investment
(“BVI"YHong Kong MERE
ERERHEES
([(EBRLHE])
/ER
Cherry Sky Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Loan financing
RERUHE/BB EREE
City China International Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Loan financing
WA B AR A A B EREE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Property investment
BEERERAR RERUHES/BE NERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% - Property development
KRR/ BB NEER
Easy Garment International Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Trading of garments
R HKERERAF BE KKEE
Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Trading of garments
B MKEE
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Investment in securities
ZHRERRAT SRERES/BE BEARRE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Investment in securities
KEBRRAF B3 BEARRE
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Investment in securities
REZEBRAR BE ERkE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Property investment
tEERERAR B NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%  Property investment
BIREERRAF B NERE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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Principal activities

TEER

Property investment

WERE
Property investment
WERE

Property development
NEER

Property investment
NERE
Property investment

NERE

Property development
MEER

Property development
NEER

HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. HE AT 2R (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of nominal value of
establishment issued share capital/ registered
Name of associates and operations capital held by the Group
AEERE
FEMRYL B BRITRE/
BENAER REEHH AR A E{E L
2017 2016
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore 23.92% 40.96%
RERLES/
AR
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%
RHEZERAA EE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%
FRERERAR RERUHE/EB
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%
FHRCEARAR EE
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%
RECEBRAR B
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% 40.96%
RERLHES/BE
Treasure Arts International Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong 23.92% -
EEEREEERLA RERUHE/EB
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of 23.92% 40.96%

China
HE

(“Enterprises Huzhou”)*

KEEE (RN BRRA (TAMER])

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China, to be operated for
50 years up to 14 December 2054.

The above table lists the associates of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars of
excessive length.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 5
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

16.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the consolidated financial
statements of EE Group prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

BN R 2R (F)

BRASEBERRAMAMEER TN
e AU I S B R DA R RARIE BB I
BREENHEE D IUEEEELRAS M ER
R-BERBINEGRR M BHRRAERET
Bf o

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current assets RBEE 1,880,798 1,049,705
Non-current assets EREEE 1,526,852 1,524,381
Current liabilities nRBBE (560,523) (115,937)
Non-current liabilities FERBALE (394,974) (133,705)
Net assets attributable to owners of B EERREIEEE TS
Eminence 2,452,153 2,324,444
Revenue Wz 36,518 103,439
Loss for the year KEEEE (26,627) (69,268)
Other comprehensive income (expense):  Ef 2 EKA (Fix) :
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ~ AJ i HEIRE 2 AT EEH
investments 13,995 (17,790)
Release upon disposal of oS AT I R A R AR IR
available-for-sale investments (5,059) -
Reclassification adjustment upon A SR E RN RER 2
impairment of available-for-sale B OEAR
investment 14,176 -
Exchange difference arising on BREBINE BRI BEIREKZ
translation of financial statements of EHER
foreign operations (16,038) 6,478)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEEMEERA (%)
for the year 7,074 (24,268)
Group’s share of loss of associates REE (R & A REE (7,643) (48,032)
Group’s share of other comprehensive REBE D (hEEE AR
income (expense) of associates Hip2mEBA (F%) 5,827 (9,941)
(1,816) (57,973)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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HF2017F3731H 1 FZ
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) BE AR 2R (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LA LB B IS B R RRNR A SRR R 2
the carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the B AR R IREESR:
consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Net assets attributable to owners of BLUCEEERRESGEEFE
EE Group 2,452,153 2,324,444
Proportion of the Group’s equity interest ~ ANEER = U EE B AR T
in EE Group s dlll 23.92% 40.96%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ REB & 1L D2 E B
in EE Group 2 AREE 586,555 952,092
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AIHHERE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at ~ R&B EMZRAE S
market value EmE 45,354 350,222

18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

@)

136

On 27 March 2014, the Group subscribed for a convertible
note issued by Eminence (“EECN”). The principal amount is
HK$100,000,000 which carries interest at 2% per annum and
payable semi-annually in arrears. The maturity date of the
EECN is on 27 March 2019 and will be redeemed at 100%
of the principal amount. The EECN can be converted at any
time from the date of issue to the maturity date. Since the
subscription, certain of the EECN with principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 were converted into 128,869,707 ordinary
shares of Eminence.

The fair value of the receivable component at initial recognition
is determined based on the valuation provided by Greater
China Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the receivable component is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 5
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R2014F3F27H - AEBREDLR S
W EET2AABRBREE (IBW
CETREZEE]) - HAX&45A
100,000,000/ 7T F B &2% 2 | & 8l
BEFEIMRIEAFE - AR ERE 2 B
Hi B A2019F3 A27H K # LA100% 8
BARGEE BIUDEATBREZEATE
BITHMEEFEE 1F 2 (E R iR o
B RIE% - K4 5880,000,0007% 7T = 1L
ETBRRKRERD K 5128,869,707
A& L b 2 AR AR (D
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18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

Since Eminence has been accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Group before 12 June 2015, the EECN was eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015. As set out in note 1, the Group lost its
control over EE Group at 12 June 2015 and EE Group became
associates of the Group on the same date. As such, the EECN
is no longer eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
thereafter. As at 12 June 2015, the conversion price was
HK$10.65 per share which was subsequently adjusted to
HK$22.72 per share upon completion of a series of rights
issue and share consolidation by Eminence.

On 7 October 2015, the Group subscribed for a convertible
note (“2016 CN”) issued by a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with principal amount of HK$60,480,000 which
carries interest at 8% per annum payable quarterly in arrears
with maturity on 7 October 2018 at redemption amount of
100% of the principal amount. The 2016 CN can be converted
at any time from the date of issue to the maturity date with
conversion price of HK$0.14 per share. In addition, both the
Group and the issuer have the option to early redeem the
2016 CN at any time from the date of issue to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding under
the 2016 CN together with all accrued interest. The fair
value at initial recognition of the receivable component and
derivatives component, which amounted to HK$43,990,000
and HK$16,490,000, respectively, are determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers not connected
with the Group. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
receivable component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and the derivative component is
carried at fair value.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7

18. AR ERE (£)

@)

(%)

RAE20155E6 A 128 LART S L2 T)
REANEB HBAR LR
B E R AN EEH E201543A31H
WFFE 2R TR B - shan
MIsE1 sl AEER 201556 A12H %
EHEILDEERE T %IJ&mmi%i
ERE— B ARER 2B E AR
it ermféﬁmi%w;@ﬂxﬁﬁT
GRER G B S TR R M8 - 72201546 A
128 X8 A10.65/8 TTHE = LI D 2
—EREBR RN AR AE B2.72
/%71"

AEBRE—MRBIALETZAA
1T 2 AT AR =R ([20164F AT % 22
1) - K4 %8 560,480,000/ T /B A EF
ZE M EFR AB8% 2 F B N ER2018
F10A7H100% & Bl A& & 58 ° 20164F

AIBREE BRTEHEZERHAZ
RS A LARRR0.1478 7T 2 HABB K,
Moo th o ANEE K% 31T A B 37T HE
ZRHE Z A AREAREEIREER
2016F Al IR 2R M fh 2 NS BE NPT
BEHEFLE o VX W RIS FEULAL 7 K 6T
HEK D 2 AFED R A43,990,0007 7T
116,490,00058 7T ° JH 1R 15 A AN £ 3%
BB B AEREEGEMEET
BEAR AR Z (HEET - VI ER
1%+ FEURAR ‘Ji/\%ﬁ ﬂwiﬁ%ﬁféﬁﬁﬁﬁm
BB R AT D A X FES IR

137

Annual Report 2016/17 %R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The convertible notes are recognised as follows:

At 1 April 2015

Arising on deemed disposal of

EE Group
Addition
Accretion of interest
Interest received
Fair value gain recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 March 2016

Accretion of interest

Interest received

Fair value loss recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 March 2017

18. AR ERE (&)

IR SRR AT

Receivable Derivatives
component component Total
FE W AR FTER D BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
2015564 H1H - - -
RAEHESLEEEE
FrEXE 18,495 - 18,495
NE 43,990 16,490 60,480
FMEZBAREE 3,934 - 3,934
BLURLE 2,747) - 2,747)
RERANERZ
NFERE - 680 680
7201653 A31H 63,672 17,170 80,842
FMEZBAEE 8,984 - 8,984
B U4FILE (5,238) - (5,238)
B AR
N EEE - (11,008) (11,0083)
720173 A31H 67,418 6,167 73,585

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the

convertible notes are as follows:

() Valuation of receivable component

At initial recognition, the fair value of the receivable component
is calculated based on the present value of contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
required yield, which is determined with reference to the
credit risk of the convertible note issuer and maturity term.
The effective interest rates of the receivable component of the
EECN and 2016 CN are 13.01% and 10.89%, respectively.

138
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18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(ii)

Valuation of derivative component

The derivative component is measured at fair value using the
Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting
period. The inputs into the model as at date of subscription
and the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

EECN

Stock price
Conversion price
Volatility
Dividend yield
Time to maturity
Risk-free rate

2016 CN

Stock price
Conversion price
Volatility
Dividend yield
Time to maturity
Risk-free rate

B fE

HBE

L

gk

B ERES RS
ERBERE

M (B

HifE

R

P

B HARS R
EE R AR IR X

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7
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18. AR ERE (£)
(i) FTERDHE
PTER D RVIRER LR BEE T ERE

HR T n e e — B R AR =0 e = i
EARFERE - NRE R RS S

REXKBZBALT
B AR R ER
Date of
At At At subscription
31 March 31 March 12 June 27 March
2017 2016 2015 2014
REEH
R20175 720165 20155 20144
3A31H 3A31A 6A12H 3A27H
HK$0.140%8 7T HK$0.138/5 7T HK$0.8975 7T HK$0.57/8 7T
HK$22.728 7T HK$22.72870  HK$10.65/57C HK$0.68/% 7T
39.29% 59.63% 45.34% 43.14%
0% 0% 0% 0%
2 yearstF 3 yearsE 3.8 yearsE 5 years’E
0.8801% 0.873% 1.058% 1.519%
2016%F AT R 15
Date of
At At subscription
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 7 October 2015
R20175F 720165 E A=k
3A31H 3A31H 2015F10A7H
HK$0.117& 7T HK$0.128 7T HK$0.18/% 7T
HK$0.147% 7t HK$0.14%& 7T HK$0.14% 7T
42.54% 48.96% 50.79%
0% 0% 0%
1.5 years& 2.5 years®F 3 years
0.7875% 1.070% 1.043%
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19. LOANS RECEIVABLE 19. EWRER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loans receivable FEBEWE R 259,121 169,669
Variable-rate loans receivable FEEWRE R 49,733 32,731
308,854 202,400
Analysed as: DR
Current portion mENE D 233,133 158,848
Non-current portion EmBNEL D 75,721 43,552
308,854 202,400

At 31 March 2017, the range of interest rate on the Group’s fixed-
rate loans receivable is 3% to 19% per annum (2016: 3% to 16%
per annum) and the range of interest rate on the Group’s variable-
rate loans receivable is prime rate less 2.95% to prime rate (2016:
prime rate less 2.8% to prime rate).

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed
by the management regularly.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on loans
receivable on an individual basis. The assessment also includes
evaluation of collectability of accounts and management’s
judgment, including the financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of each
borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
This includes assessing the credit history of the borrowers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current market
conditions.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$308,854,000 (2016: HK$202,400,000) at 31 March 2017 that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality and
no impairment loss was identified. At 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
loans receivable are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 5
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RAZEEERREERTBUBRAZE
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EBREBEAERAZHBEER REEE.
AR R B U E S 2 B 2 HI -

REEE B E 2 FTIREHCR - REEE E
FEREFEZVNEHEEEEREAHNZE
EERZEASNE - EPEEFEERAZ
EEESL MY HRENEOEN LRE
TEAR T ©

EREBEREREWERZEEEE RA
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19. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

20.

21.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of business of loan financing.

The Group’s loan receivable that is denominated in currency other
than the functional currency of the respective group entity, which is
denominated in USD, amounted to HK$15,520,000 as at 31 March
2017.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company set up a
wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong, Constance Capital Limited
(“Constance Capital”), for the purpose of securities dealing and
broking. Business of Constance Capital has not yet commenced at
31 March 2017.

Intangible asset represents a trading right of carrying value of
HK$500,000 that confers eligibility of Constance Capital to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading right has no foreseeable limit
to the period that Constance Capital can use to generate net cash
flows. As a result, the trading right is considered by management
of the Company as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading
right will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to
be finite. It will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2017,
the management of the Company determined that there is no
impairment of Constance Capital’s trading right based on its value
in use.

STATUTORY DEPOSITS

The amount represents Constance Capital’s statutory deposits with
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7

19.

20.

21.

W ER (&)

BRERBEREDT AARREFERAE 5
EXmEEBUMEMS RO ILL AR
SMETE

N [ fE U B 2017463 A31 B AR A 4E
MEETE ZNEEE LI N E-ETIIE
2 &% 415,520,000 7T °

BREE

HE22017F3ABIB EF R AREREE
Ry —M2EWBAR LHEELAFRA
Al ([BLHEEAR])  UNETESRZEH R
20173 A318 sLIEE AN M ARFIAE % -

BREET AR T LB AR BRI T
BE 2 X 52 BRH{E500,0008 7T - SAHEE
RAERREHRRZ X P EERRE REF
ol ARAREEERRRHERER
ERFHRERETERAEMREREF
H-RXPETEWEHEEERAFHNETE

AT BE AL B B 1T R E B &L 0 1R20174°3 A 31

B ARRAEEENIREEMEEETE L
BARZRSHRBRIE"

EERE

ZEBIRAEEATF RN EBME X 5P
BRABZEERE -
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B 2201743431 HiF F&
22. DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A LIFE INSURANCE

23.

142

POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered into
a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under the policy,
the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is US$10,800,000 (equivalent to HK$83,808,000). The
Company is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$1,283,000
(equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including a premium charge at
inception of the policy amounting to US$76,980 (equivalent to
HK$597,000). The Company can terminate the policy at any time
and receive cash back based on the cash value of the policy at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge
(“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first
to eighteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender
charge. The insurance company will pay the Company an interest of
4.0% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy for the
first year. Commencing on the second year, the interest will become
2% per annum plus a premium determined by the insurance
company.

At 31 March 2017, the deposit and prepayments for a life insurance
policy amounting to HK$10,373,000 (2016: HK$10,277,000), with
HK$282,000 (2016: HK$280,000) being included in trade and other
receivables (see note 25), were pledged to a bank to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy are
denominated in United States dollars (‘USD”), a currency other than
the functional currency of the Company.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2017, the whole amount of properties held for
development for sale is expected to be completed within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group performed assessment
of net realisable value on its properties held for development for
sale with reference to valuations made by independent qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group.
The valuations were arrived at by using the residual method.
As the estimated net realisable values of the properties held for
development for sale are higher than their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no write-down on these properties is considered
necessary.
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B 2201743431 HiF F&
24. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

25.

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value

24, BEEERE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAET
REB LT ZRAES  mhiE
287,493 64,695

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25, BEEREMERIKE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 W SRIA 304 478
Deposit and prepayments for a life ABREZIEE R
insurance policy (note 22) TERT R (Hatz2) 282 280
Escrow deposits for properties FEHEMETERS
held for sale 34,947 44,556
Amounts recoverable from joint operator KB HEFEAET 2
(note) e &8 (HET) 51,741 25,241
Prepayments SEENEEN 440 482
Interest receivable JE RS 2,978 1,627
Other receivables Hth UK IR 3,277 2,026
93,969 74,690
Note:  Under the terms of a joint operation arrangement for a property Kt WRE-EERWEERER ZHXR
redevelopment project, each of the Group and the other BIELHGER AEEREMER
joint operator agreed to pay for and bear the redevelopment SEFEEBRERBESTREZL
costs incurred on the project in proportion to their agreed PN RDERE cEREKRAH
proportion. The other joint operator undertook to promptly RS ER A EREAREEE K
make contributions when called upon to do so by the Group. BRI ES - RBRREGIER 2
The amounts recoverable from joint operator represented RESEDARMEREERIZ
redevelopment costs incurred which were attributable to the BEARELMFEL SRS EMR
proportion agreed to be paid for and borne by the other joint AEEBW KBRS FZEREKA-

operator for which the Group had not called for payment.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIBEE AR A 7 1 4
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25,

The Group allows credit period of up to 20 days to its tenants. The
aged analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date which
approximates revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0-60H
61 -90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days #H3B90H

B RHEMEWRE (&)

AEELHEBFPZEEMRRE20H 1R
BEROWGEHARMZEZAY BHRK
AN E AR BREEDTT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET
270 344

20 35

14 99

304 478

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31 March 2017
were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$201,000 (2016:
HK$247,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days 2B 1260
Overdue by 61 to 90 days B iR H61%E90H
Overdue by over 90 days £ 38 H#2:E90H

ERERTERBES NEAMBKTIEZEE
BEMRBHRBBHRREZE S REMRE
WHIARBRIFEEE R

201763 A31H A& B 2 & 5 FEWFIE
@i BIEIRME{E S $£201,000/5 7T (2016
247,000 L) AEBHMAEEL 5T
REBE AEEWRERZELEHRIFEIM
Ao

BBEIA R AIE Y B BRI 2 R ST
-

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAET
167 113

20 35

14 99

201 247

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables
that are past due are generally recoverable and as a result, no
allowance was made for trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.
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B 2201743431 HiF F&
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE

27.

28.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired equity-
linked investments with financial institutions in Hong Kong. The
equity-linked investments contain embedded derivative, the return
of which is determined with reference to the closing price of two
equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange. The equity-linked
investments are designated as at FVTPL at initial recognition. The
aggregate principal amount is HK$95,000,000 (2016: nil) with fixed
coupon interest rates and remaining time to maturity within two
months. The equity-linked investments contain terms enabling the
issuers either to deliver the underlying equity securities on maturity
if the market prices of underlying securities are lower than their
respective predetermined reference stock prices or cash settlement
of the principal and interest if market prices of the underlying
securities are higher than their respective predetermined reference
stock prices. The equity-linked investments are subject to the option
for early termination at the discretion of the holders.

26.

BRATEFABSEZERHEE

HE2017F3ABIBA EFR A EBEEEH
S RRERARZHRNE - ERHNIEE
BERNETAETRE HERDHBEMBNE
BT EMREEF 2 W EMETE &
Z RN E NI ERE R E AR AT ER
AJB 3 o N4 48%895,000,000/5 7T (20164F :
#)EET RN HGMEA Bl = 8
BB SRR BT ASHBEESME
BREEEE2ERGDERBNEEAXE
FHEBREES KEREESFZTERRE
BETF2ZRMNEREARSENAS LA
BoFEARHERZRD LI REHNE
ig °

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. BITEHRES
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and RITHBERePEAERFECHENAR
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months BT HFFIZEH0.001%£0.26% (2016
or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to F:0.001%%4.8% ) 2 ={E0 Ak 2RI ZIE 2
0.26% (2016: 0.001% to 4.8%) per annum. RHIRITIF R e
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EHRHMENKIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables aged within 30 days 2 5 e FIBRE B308 A 10 3,132
Retention payable (hote) B RIES (HiF) 14,472 10,145
Rental deposits received and Bk REKES
rental received in advance 13,833 15,334
Deposits received from sale of HEFESU 2 EKIZE
residential units 32,877 44,491
Property management fund payable ENYMEERES 9,999 10,084
Interest payable FERTFILE 673 734
Commission payable to property agents ~ JEfH A& T EAL 4T 6,520 -
Amount payable to property purchasers ENSETMEERH 5,667 -
Accruals and other payables TEIE N E A FES K08 11,175 3,098
95,226 87,018
The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on invoice B S FENFIE 2 RER DT THR IR ¥ & 8
date at the end of the reporting period. ACBEZEAHBE-
Note: At 31 March 2017, the retention payable of HK$14,472,000 Wit R201743A831H  ERHRE2

(2016: HK$1,349,000) is expected to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2016,
the retention payable of HK$8,796,000 (2017: nil) is expected
to be settled more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

B Z2017F3731H 1 FF
29. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 29. BIEKFRITHEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Carrying amount repayable as follows JEEEZREENT
(based on the scheduled repayment (REHIINER HE
dates set out in the loan agreements): JEEEEBRR)
— within one year ——%FRQ 235,741 224,773
— between one to two years ——E=WF 260,340 146,930
— between two to five years ——FhF 85,432 184,424
- after five years —hFE& 317,969 345,894
899,482 902,021
Comprising: BE:
Amount due within one year shown BERIRRBAEZ —FA
under current liabilities FH MR 235,741 224,773
Amount that are not repayable B WS BRETTE
within one year from the end of R—FRAERESS
the reporting period but containing REEEBRZ©HE
a repayment on demand clause 26,532 -
Total amount shown under current YN E= N ol o
liabilities 262,273 224,773
Amount shown under non-current BTRRIERBAEBE SR
liabilities 637,209 677,248
899,482 902,021
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s secured bank borrowings 720174 20163 A31H » A%k E 2 K
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) WIRITEETIABEARITRERS ([BHHR
plus 1% to HIBOR plus 2.65%, with effective interest ranging from TRZEFRE]) M BZEEBRITRZEF S M
1.46% to 3.09% (2016: 1.23% to 2.98%) per annum. The loans are 2.65%tE - BERFNETIHE1.46%%3.09%
secured by investment properties, properties held for development (20164 : 1 23%j:2 98% ) i S E YA
for sale, properties held for sale, financial assets designated as at REBZIRENE BIELEERME &
FVTPL and deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy (see EREME - RRAVEFABZCCREE
note 34). The proceeds were mainly used to finance acquisition of MASREZIZE RENFIEAER (T
investment properties and development of properties. 34) FIERIBEXERERBIREME R
BEZRBE -
All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional currencies REBR FERTEEHURREEE
of the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period. BB EEEITYIE.
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S A =
HREMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B&AK
2017 & 2016
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JEIE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000/% & i% EI{E0.17%8 7T
2 TR 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BFETREE -
79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403% =% H{E0.175 7T
2 &R 7,942

31.

There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued and
fully paid share capital in both years.

ARFZERE BRI RMRRALE R EE
TR

DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEHIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERBEFEZEBREERLTHIA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BE(EE) RAZHNT
years:
Accelerated
tax Revaluation Tax
depreciation  of properties losses Total
MERERE EXRL/ES BIEEE HEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2015 720154 18 991 16,642 (779) 16,854
Released on deemed disposal of 18 /& &M E A 78
subsidiaries Rk (90) (16,642) - (16,732)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss Ridzm (FTA) kR
(note 11) (BraE11) ©®) - 779 773
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A31H 895 - - 895
Credit to profit or loss (note 71) WA (F5E11) (703) - (192) (895)
At 31 March 2017 7201743 A31H 192 - (192) -

At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$8,820,000 (2016: HK$11,798,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect
of HK$1,162,000 (2016: nil) of such losses as at 31 March 2017. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of HK$7,658,000 (2016: HK$11,798,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
tax losses of HK$94,304,000 and HK$5,117,000 were reduced as a
result of deemed disposal of subsidiaries in June 2015 and disposal
of subsidiaries in November 2015, respectively.
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20174 3A318 - A B AR AHIEE
18 58,820,000/ T (20164F : 11,798,000/
JC) A AR 8 R 2R s Al o B AR 72201743
A318 2 %18 E5181,162,0007% 7T (20164F
EIDHERABECERIBEE AR RETERT
RAEAFIRMA » B TR 82 7,658,00078
7T (20164F : 11,798,000/5 7T ) 2 BB E18 &
FERBEE -HEBEERBPEE R
H E2016F3A31H ILFE - A2015F6 A 17
AHENB AR EPR2015F11 AL EHRBA
AB TR IEEE D B 294,304,000 7T &
5,117,000 7T, °

147

Annual Report 2016/17 %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B Z2017F3731H 1 FF
32. JOINT OPERATIONS 32. SEEK
On 16 June 2014, the Group entered into a development agreement M2014F6 7168 A& BEBLE=FH
(the “Agreement”) with an independent third party (“Third Party”) (IE=F)&FTERG® ([HEl) LR
to jointly develop a site (the “Project”). Under the Agreement, the BR-MR(TER]) - REBEZ W HiFR
existing building of the site shall be demolished and redeveloped as MBRIREEFRERA—BREZEANEFTE
a multi-story building for sales purpose. The Group and Third Party HERBR AEBRE=FHREFEA 2
own 75% and 25% interest of the Project, respectively. 75% K 25% M % ©
The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and ERREBT G EEB 2 ERNGRE VW
expenses recognised in the consolidated financial statements in rERZEERAB WEEkAXHESHE
relation to the Group’s interest in the joint operations are as follows: R
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE 461,609 221,836
Liabilities =N (431,301) (227,673)
Revenue W zs - -
Expenses 53 (379) (788)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 11 November 2015, the Group completed the dispose of its
entire 100% equity interest in certain subsidiaries, which were
principally engaged in property investments, to EE Group for a cash
consideration of HK$240,000,000. The net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of disposal were as follows:

33. HEKELR

R2015F11A11H AEEB AR SR B
240,000,000 L e N ER T EEREYHE
B Z M B AT H 2 E100% % F el
¥EE -NHEANKHBARZEEFH
s

11 November

2015
20154
118118
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties wEYE 241,837
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A e IE 186
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 8,651
Trade and other payables B 5N EMEN IR (1,459)
Tax payable JEI B8 (192)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFSE 249,023
Net loss on disposal: RRk=—vd-opi=peit-
Net assets disposed of s EEFE (249,023)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of REERNBARREEFE 2
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from SrtENEZEhAER
equity to profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries B EEER (1,799)
Cash consideration RERE 240,000
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR &R (10,822)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESIRZREMAFERE
Cash consideration RERE 240,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEBRKEIRS (8,651)
Set off with subscription of rights shares of Eminence RHE = L1 AR AR 0 8 (209,065)
22,284
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the

Group:

Investment properties
Deposit and prepayments
for a life insurance policy
Properties held for development for sale
Properties held for sale
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

34. BEEEKF

REMF
ABREZ I RBNK

FIEHEZRRME
FIEHEME
BAFEFABSRZEREE

RBEMR AEEERRTRITERERT
AEBERBAECEENT:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHT
1,515,000 1,431,000
10,373 10,277
312,136 106,513
227,778 635,495
95,309 -
2,160,596 2,183,285

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties
and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above
properties held for development for sale and properties held for sale

were also pledged to banks.
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised in
profit or loss during the year

AN Bl EME B e R Bl FHERE
BRMERFELEMERR ZHEMER

N MR TIRT
35. RERNRH
AEEEREEA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
REARIBRER 2 SEBLR
2,663 2,066

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

—5R
EF_EZENFAN(BREEMF)

R|BERR AEBRIBTAREBELEHED
ZARRREE FASEHR AT -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
1,062 1,039
678 1,311
1,740 2,350

1 50 Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIFEEBE AR A 5
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

B Z2017F3731H 1 FZ

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 35, REMHTH(E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBERABAA (E)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group WERNNFIERNEEREETRAERE
for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases are EEMzENES HAMBE AN —ZRF
negotiated for terms of one to two years (2016: one to two years). (20165 : —Z=MF) ©
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are RIEAEBEI Y 2B MAONFEREE
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent R AT IS A SR E e

rental payments.

The Group as lessor AEBERAEHAA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Property rental income earned REAGRIR 2 MERS A
during the year 51,664 58,211
Less: Outgoings J8 2 (1,615) (1,578)
Net rental income el A F5 50,049 56,633
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with PRRE HAR - AN B BIAE P AT 3 AR AR R A
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: (W EROLE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEr
Within one year —%FR 47,328 15,393
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-ZENFAN(BEEEME) 36,641 5,990
83,969 21,383
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are BEAEBI 2B AHONFARER
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent WEIT L SRABEN R -HEMEZH
rental payments. The properties held have committed tenants for HEH—Z=MF (2016F : —2RHF) o

terms of one to four years (2016: one to five years).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1LFE

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 35.
The Group as lessor (Continued)
At 31 March 2017, operating lease rentals committed by close

relatives of certain directors of the Company amounted to
HK$160,000 (2016: HK$160,000) which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FA

WERNRHE(E)
AEEESHEBEAN (Z)
R2017F3A831H  ARRBETESR ZHAT

A 2 ST E R £ € 5H160,00075 7T (2016
4 :160,0007%8T) 2 AR 40T -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
160 160

At 31 March 2017, operating lease rentals committed by EE Group

#2017F3 7318 S EEBTEE 2L

which fall due as follows: EHEHe 2HRIOT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Within one year —FR 1,040 1,456
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAREE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for EETAVE M AR R ARG Mg RS
but not provided in the consolidated BEZEARAS:
financial statements in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment —WZE - B MR 621 -
37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 37. RBIKEFREE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

38.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been dealt with
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
HK$508,000 (2016: HK$532,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under the 2012
El Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their absolute
discretion grant options to all directors (including any executive and
non-executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme
is valid for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 ElI Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption
of 2012 El Scheme. The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to
be exercised under the 2012 El Scheme and other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
shall be subject to the approval of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of the
Company abstaining from voting.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

39.

154

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 El Scheme
is determined by the board of directors of the Company and shall
end on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or
in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any,
which must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer
for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 ElI Scheme or
exercised during both years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group received
rental income of HK$2,496,000 from EE Group. During the
year ended 31 March 2016 and since 12 June 2015 when
Eminence and its subsidiaries became associates of the
Group, the Group received rental income of HK$2,080,000
from EE Group. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
directors and substantial shareholders of the Company, are
also directors of Eminence.

(b) At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group holds a convertible
note issued by Eminence, details of which are set out in note
18(a).
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 39. BMEAXRE BEXRS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

(c)

TEEEASZHMH

EERHEMIBEEXNERFAZHE

management during the year was as follows: LUNNE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
From continuing operations: REFELSEXEL:
Short-term employee benefits HAEEEF
Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMEF 10,957 10,627
Performance related bonuses HRIBEEZES 13,000 17,000
Contribution to retirement benefit RIRTEFFHEI R
schemes 251 235
24,208 27,862
From discontinued operations: RECRIEEEER:
Short-term employee benefits EHREEF
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER - 462
Contribution to retirement benefit RIREF B R
schemes - 5
- 467
24,208 28,329

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the executive
directors, respectively, having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

EE=RFRTRABRZME D Bt
ZEGMRTESRRENALZRR

K58 mEE -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

156

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee to act as general
manager of the Company. The employment agreement, which
constitutes a connected transaction, commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either party at any
time by three months’ notice. The monthly salary has been
adjusted to HK$150,000 with effect from 1 April 2013. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of
the Company (excluding EE Group) during the year ended
31 March 2017 was HK$1,950,000 (2016: HK$1,950,000)
and was included in the “compensation of key management
personnel” in (c) above.

Also in January 2011, Eminence entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee with identical terms as
the employment agreement between the Company and Mr.
Koon Wing Yee as set out above. During the year ended 31
March 2016 and up to 12 June 2015 when Eminence was
a subsidiary of the Company, the remuneration of Mr. Koon
Wing Yee as general manager of Eminence was HK$303,000
and was included in the “compensation of key management
personnel” in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu who is
a director of the Company and is also one of the beneficiaries
under a family trust holding 36.74% (2016: 36.74%) equity
interest of the Company at 31 March 2017. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
also holds 21.95% (2016: 21.95%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$240,000 (2016: HK$618,000) from
certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid
HK$1,400,000 (2016: nil) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders
of the Company, which is recognised in profit or loss as
“donations”.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid
HK$864,000 (2016: nil) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee, which is
recognised in profit or loss as “advertising”.

39.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 29, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 20) is regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and is required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)
R”). Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, Constance
Capital’s liquid capital level to ensure compliance with the minimum
liquid capital requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital
has no non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A 7

40.

EXEBEE

BHERAN S B T2 48 A A AR A
EEHEEAEITER BB B R
EHERBETEMARRFRERSHE
o AR SRS B F M TR -

AEBNEARBESERFREPREM
o AHEMRITIER RELFERRAE R
AARBRREEERD  ERE/EETHRA
Rt M R

RRABEETE RGN ERRE - ERIERH
—HbD EREEREAKRAREARNIBRR
BRe-REBEFMNRS AEEMHERRNTK
BBTHRNHEEENERRITEE A
FEMEBERRE-

SMEEA (R KTE20) DRBEE S MAES
BERZEEEERAEBTREREIZSFR
HE (MERER) AR ([MBRERRL ) Z
MRERER BEEESRAEERLEER
RREE TR FARRENS A M ERERRA
ZERERBE S BERK - REFERAIFEE AL &
TIEFMRERRA 2 ESER-

1©7

Annual Report 2016/17 %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

158

Categories of financial instruments

ERITH

a. @WMIAEZEHR

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including BER Kk ERFIE
cash and cash equivalents) (PREEe;ERRSE)
— Trade and other receivables — B Z R EMEWKIE 89,970 71,676
- Deposit and prepayments —ABREZZRS
for a life insurance policy SSELNEEN 10,373 10,277
— Loans receivable —EIER 308,854 202,400
- Convertible notes — Al AR R 67,418 63,672
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBR LIRS 25,473 12,332
502,088 360,357
Fair value through profit or loss BAFERFAER
— Investments held for trading —HERERERE 287,493 64,695
— Financial assets designated as — AP EFABRRZ
at FVTPL SREE 95,309 -
382,802 64,695
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE
— Available-for-sale investments —A[fEHERE 45,354 350,222
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 6,167 17,170
Financial liabilities cRaE
Amortised cost BEIERR
— Trade and other payables —Z 5 REMERMNFIA 38,836 39,328
— Secured bank borrowings —EEMRITIEE 899,482 902,021
938,318 941,349
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, deposit
and prepayments for a life insurance policy, loans receivable,
convertible notes, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Market risk

() Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings and
variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loans receivable and deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to such interest rate
risk, however, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when

significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR

arising from bank borrowings.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

160

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable.
The analysis was prepared assuming these balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 would increase
or decrease by HK$3,520,000 (2016: profit for the year
would decrease or increase by HK$3,575,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Currency risk

All of the Group’s sales and purchases are denominated
in the group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign

currency denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

usD

41.

$®MIA (&)
b. HXREAKMEEEERIEE (&)

TS E R (&)
) FIEmEE(F)
BURREDM

(i)

AT ZHEEDIT T ERE TR
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F =R S 1 S AR A0 B 7 2 i By
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EEER
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RIEHR - AINESIE 2 EEE
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Assets
BE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
25,893 10,277
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €@MIA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EKEZEEEZREE (&)
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against USD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Under the
pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between HKD and USD will be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and equity-linked
investments. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group’s equity price risk
is concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and these investments are diversified into several
different industries.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined

based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting date.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

162

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk (Continueq)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
investments held for trading had been 10% (2016: 10%)
higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 would decrease/increase by HK$24,006,000 (2016:
increase/decrease in post-tax profit by HK$5,402,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of investments held
for trading.

If the prices of the underlying equity securities of the
financial assets designated as at FVTPL had been 10%
(2016: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by
HK$7,958,000 (2016: nil) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2016:
10%) higher:

° investment revaluation reserve would increase by
HK$4,535,000 (2016: HK$35,022,000) as a result
of the increase in fair value of available-for-sale
investments; and

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2016:
10%) lower:

o post-tax loss would increase by HK$1,066,000
(2016: no change in post-tax profit) and
investment revaluation reserve would decrease by
HK$3,469,000 (2016: HK$35,022,000) as a result
of the decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to obligations at 31 March 2017
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

41.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable amounting to approximately HK$308,854,000 at 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$202,400,000) with 64% (2016: 10%) of
the balances secured by marketable securities or properties.
The largest borrower of the Group by itself and together with
the other four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for
approximately 32% and 70% respectively (2016: 25% and
58% respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2017. As at 31 March 2017, all loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired and the borrowers are assessed to
have satisfactory credit quality with reference to financial
background, current creditworthiness, collateral and past
payment of each borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of the
loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
is for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on loans
receivable is significantly reduced.

At 31 March 2017, approximately 66% (2016: 52%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were past due but not impaired at
the end of the reporting period. The management considers
that the credit risk of these trade receivables is minimal as all
are with long business relationship.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on trade
receivables is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds at the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
majority of the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
banks with good reputation.
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b. UXREAKMEEEEREE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BZ2017F3H31HILFE
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. E@MITAE(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMEERKEEEEZREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk HEE LR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors RRBDECREBREIEMS  ANEBEER
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed MHERHERERBRMKEZHERE
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s FERESUHEAEBR 2 LEME -BEE
operations. The management also monitors the utilisation of MEREEZBAVRREETERE
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. e
At 31 March 2017, the Group has available unutilised bank R2017F3A318  AEEEAB AR
loan facilities of HK$577,552,000 (2016: HK$654,388,000). 1T E R € #9577,552,0007% 7T (2016
F : 654,388,000/5 7T ) °
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TREFAEBzeRBEZFBEL
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial FIHAEARR - BLIEDTE SR BREM S - &
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the FRIVEAEE R E RN R R R
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the AMemBERTRREREIN T
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Liquidity risk tables BB AR
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted ~ amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to5years Over5years cash flows 31 March
MEFH I KBRS WASMA
BRAE  SRER SEAEIE 1255 BB5E it L ZEEE
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET TET FET FET TET
2017 20175
Non-derivative financial FTESREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B RAMBENFE N/A 25,840 12,99 - - 38,836 38,836
TER
Secured bank borrowings BHRRRIEE 2.00 244,948 30,637 349,572 345,851 971,008 899,482
270,788 43,633 349,572 345,851 1,009,844 938,318
2016 20165
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B RHEMENTIR N/A 29,183 1,349 8,796 - 39,328 39,328
T
Secured bank borrowings BERRTEE 1.91 193,957 41,688 358,040 376,663 970,348 902,021
223,140 43,037 366,836 376,663 1,009,676 941,349
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF &
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

Secured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2017, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these secured bank borrowings
amounted to HK$28,843,000 (2016: nil). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the lenders will exercise b=
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The

4. EWMITE(Z)

mBELmE (F)

REETEBX (F)

MREBEEERREE (£)

BERBEEEKIZBERBRTEER
FEE ERIER S 2 [ R RS ek D
3@ A | Z B A - 201743 A31H -
ZEBERBRITEECAHREEER
28,843,000/ 7T (2016 : ) ° & E E A
SEEZ MR ARFESTRAEE
FITEERBREZREIRER K
NABEERAZESRITEEBREHT

directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings RERBHERBHER E@FE
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment IR T«
dates set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to5years cash flows amounts
mEFE  RRONH AARRE R3A31H
BERA=E SHMER  MEAEIE 1255 MERE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Secured bank borrowings BHEARITEE
At 31 March 2017 K201743A31H 219 732 2,180 26,985 29,897 28,843
At 31 March 2016 #20165°3A31H N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER TER TER TER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value

@

166

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used).

Fair value
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy
tREE ATLER3AE AFERE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Available-for-sale investments 45,354 350,222 Level 1
AEHERE E1R
Investments held for trading 287,493 64,695 Level 1
FEEERE E1R
Derivative component of 6,167 17,170 Level 3
convertible notes £31
ARREE
PTER D
Financial assets designated 95,309 - Level 2
as at FVTPL $of

BRI ARECEREE

Note: Quoted market prices provided by bank represent
the fair value based on the quoted prices on the
underlying investments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in
both years.

4. ERMITE(Z)
c. A¥E

() RELEMEEZLFEGEZ
FEEEHBEEZ 1 FE

AEENDEREENRERR
BATFEFE-TREALEHR
EREEZSEREEAT
B (LER FAZEERT LS

A) e
Valuation techniques and
key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
RERTREEHA EXTABEHA

Quoted bid prices in an active  N/A

market NEA
RERTSHMERZHE
Quoted bid prices in an active  N/A
market NEA
RERTSHMERZHE
Black-Scholes model with Details of key inputs are set out in note 18

Trinomial Tree method FEHAFBERIIAMT8
MR -HNBEAR

=X
Quoted market prices N/A
provided by bank (note) MEf
BRGZ TETE
(Hizt)

Hret . RITIREZATSRME TG R
REHBZATE

S B2 N EIR 2 EIRE R
MEFEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c. Fair value (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities other
than convertible notes recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values:

Convertible notes of HK$67,418,000 (note 18) with fair
value of HK$70,802,000 are recognised at amortisation
cost less impairment losses as at 31 March 2017.

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

4. EWMITE(Z)

c. 2DFEE)

(i)

RERBEEEMEELZ LN FPER
BZLHEERCHEBZ AT
=

HiteBEERERABE I ATE
BERERZEEEN  WRER

BROREDNMETE -

RATIEFRAS  AEHR AR ER
mAlBREzeMEERSRA
B REEEELAFERI-

Al # B% Z 567,418,000/ 7T (M %
18) 2 AF{E70,802,0007% 742017
FIA31 A AR B AR ERSE

42, FEMBLATZFHE

720174 20163 A31H * A AR = EH
BRARZHBWOT

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value

establishment of issued share/
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital

Bl aye BRI/
WEAR AR BIREE®RH SMBRAEE
Ace Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
ERREBRDA Bk LTRR BT
Arrowfield Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1

KBRANE/EE  LERIER
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
BEREFRRA Bk EERET
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1

KBRANE/EE  LERIER
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
REREFRRA Bk L M10,000% T

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 7

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

indirectly by the Company Principal activities
FARBEBFCRIRE/
SR BAREEL S TEEHR
2017 2016
100% 100% Investment in securities
EHRE
100% 100% Investment in securities
BHEA
100% 100%  Property investment
NERE
100% 100%  Loan financing
BEXma
100% 100%  Property investment

ES &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value

establishment of issued share/
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital

R BRI/
WEAR AR RIREE Y SMBRAEE
Easyknit Properties Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
KEMEEEFRLA Tk Ei®1710,000% 7T
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
KRREERRA BE ERRIET
Gold Asset Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
SEREBRAA Tk EERAT
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
FRREBRAF BE ERRIET
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
ERERERARA Tk EEAT
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
BRERARAA BE ERRIET
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
BRRRARAF RBRAHS/BE  EEWER
Hansford International Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
ERARRERRAR RBRAHS/BE  LERIER
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1
BEREBRAA EBRAHE/BE  EERIER
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
ERERARAF Bk ERR2ET
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
ZEERERAA BE LiE10,000 7T
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
BERAERRT Bk ERRET
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2

Bk LEmosT
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Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

indirectly by the Company
FARAMEREERATRE/
EMBRAEEL

2017 2016
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -
100% -
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -
100% 100%

42, FEMBEAT2FHE (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Property management

MEEE

Property development
NRER

Property development
ESHES

Investment in securities

EHRE

Property development
MEER

Property investment

NERE

Loan financing
ERE

Property development
NRER

Property development
MEER

Property investment and
investment in securities

NEREREFRE

Property investment

NERE

Property development

NEER

Loan financing
BERRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B Z2017F3731H 1 FZ
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42, FEMBLARZFHE (&)
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value value of issued share capital/
establishment of issued share/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ 2%/ KAAMERRERTRE/
WEAR AR RYREEHRY HRRAEE SRR AHE AL TEEH
2017 2016
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property development
REERERLA Bk ERRIET MERR
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
HEREBRAT Bk ERRET NERER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
EAREBRRA Tk Ei®1710,000% 7T NERE
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100% Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2?)
BERABRLA Bk L1%%9,9987 7T mERE
(BRZEETR
2ET)
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property development
EEREBRAR Bk ERRET NEER
*  The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited * BEREAGRATZEREEREREE
carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general WHEMRRAE s HEIRAE
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution ERE AEAFTERENED KT
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid ERERSERBESRND 25
up on the shares.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in A EBIRFTAIR Z AR AT B AR RIEA
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected NAIBZFCEBER FEREFRNIEELE
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the KAEBEEZE2H D -MARBIEEZ
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in BERRA EEEMMBARZFIEGHRE
the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars of BHBR TR

excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

For the year ended 31 March 2017

B 2201743431 HiF F&
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43.

44.

170

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

FEHEH FTEEHEMEB
Investment in securities Hong Kong
BHIRE BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
A i

Inactive Hong Kong
JEIE B e

42,

Principal place of business

TEWBARZFHE (&)

RISk AARME R H A EEH S
TREBWEAR- IEHBATABS
REBLE WENBARZ T EEBHE
AR

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREA

2017 2016
2 -
10 7
2 3
14 10

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2017 or 31 March 2016.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired equity-
linked notes for HK$861,000,000 (2016: HK$631,500,000). These
equity-linked notes were linked to securities listed on the Stock
Exchange and being classified as financial assets designation as
at FVTPL. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain equity-linked
notes of HK$88,024,000 (2016: HK$36,209,000) and nil (2016:
HK$301,787,000) were converted into investments held for trading
and available-for-sale investments, respectively, as the share price
at date of maturity of the underlying securities reached the strike
price.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 March
2017:

(@ On 1 March 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Eminence for subscribing from Eminence 3%
convertible note due 2022 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$16,000,000 (the “2017 EECN”).

Under the subscription agreement, the 2017 EECN, when
issued, will entitle the Group to convert it into ordinary shares
of Eminence at any time between the date of issue of the
2017 EECN and its settlement date which falls on the fifth
anniversary of the issue date at a conversion price of HK$0.16
per share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). Conversion
shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights. Interest of 3% per annum shall be paid
semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.
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44.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 2201793531 HIFFE

44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Assuming full conversion of the 2017 EECN at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.16 on 1 March 2017, date of the
subscription agreement, a total of 100,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of Eminence will
be allotted and issued to the Group and the Group’s equity
interest over EE Group will increase from 23.92% to 27.73%.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 March 2017.

The 2017 EECN is subsequently issued to the Group on 11
May 2017.

On 13 April 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to acquire the entire issued share capital
and the shareholder’s loan of Global Chance Holdings
Limited (“GCHL”) for an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$129,788,000. Upon completion of the acquisition, GCHL
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Written
approvals of the acquisition have been obtained from two
substantial shareholders of the Company which hold an
aggregate of over 50% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Up to 13 April 2017 when the Group entered into the
agreement with GCHL’s vendor, GCHL has entered into
eleven provisional agreements with eleven property vendors
of a total of eleven units in a building. The total cash
consideration for the acquisition of the eleven units under
the provisional agreements is HK$305,384,000. Up to the
date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements,
GCHL has paid deposits to the property vendors under the
provisional agreements amounting to HK$30,538,000 and
stamp duty amounting to HK$71,766,000. Upon completion
of the acquisition of GCHL by the Group, the Group will be
responsible for paying the balance of the property purchase
consideration to the property vendors under the provisional
agreements amounting to HK$274,846,000.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 April 2017 and circular dated 10 May
2017.
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4. REHFRBEE (££)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=JAN =
FREMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31H1EFE
45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 45, AT ZHMBRRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Non-current assets EmMBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB R A 1,902,164 1,758,313
Deposit and prepayments ASREZ RS RFBRAK
for a life insurance policy 10,091 9,997
1,912,255 1,768,310
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H A GROE 436 434
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIAS 4,092 806
4,528 1,240
Current liabilities mEBaE
Other payables H b B HUR 790 1,022
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE S 581,990 425,866
Tax payable FERTRIE 899 -
583,679 426,888
Net current liabilities mEN A EFE (579,151) (425,648)
Net assets BEFE 1,333,104 1,342,662
Capital and reserves BEARRRE
Share capital [N 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) @ (i) 1,325,162 1,334,720
Total equity B 1,333,104 1,342,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
B 22017F3H31HILFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 45. XA R ZEMBRRE ()

(Continued)
Note: st -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the prior KRB EBERFARBEFE 2 EEBMNT

years are as follows:

Share Capital Contributed ~ Accumulated

premium reserve surplus profits Total

R 5RE BEXRE AR 25HEA “E

HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET FHET FET FHET

At 1 April 2015 H2015F4 A1H 218,330 196,565 220,937 751,841 1,387,673
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBBK

expense for the year FEATLE - - - 45,011) (45,011)

Dividend B - - - (7,942) (7,942)

- - - (52,953) (52,953)

At 31 March 2016 72016534317 218,330 196,565 220,937 698,888 1,334,720
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFBRR

expense for the year 2EHRYBE - - - (1,616) (1,616)

Dividend RE - - - (7,942) (7,942)

- - - (9,558) (9,558)

At 31 March 2017 % 201743 A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 689,330 1,325,162

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZEIEEBE AR A 5 —]
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Financial Summary

MBEMBE

RESULTS &
Year ended 31 March
B ZE3A31AL
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEr FEr FET FET FET
Revenue BEE 524,398 275,757 649,475 693,374 529,475
Profit (loss) before taxation BREADRF (EE) 647,471 23,836 243,569 196,968 (219,885)
Taxation TIE (1,723) (6,701) (20,963) (32,326) (23,961)
645,748 17,135 222,606 164,642 (243,846)

Profit (loss) for the year JEIAFE R T

attributable to: (B18) -

- owners of the Company S VNGILE 647,022 13,036 202,867 138,936 (243,846)

- non-controlling interests — IR ER (1,274) 4,009 19,739 25,706 -

645,748 17,135 222,606 164,642 (243,846)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R3H31H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEr FET FET FEr FEx

Total assets BEE 4,057,287 5,283,049 5,583,588 4,124,851 3,871,349
Total liabilities BEE (855,363) (1,838,784) (1,688,789) (1,031,851) (1,019,089)
Net assets BERE 3,201,924 3,444,265 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260
Equity attributable to owners ~ ZA 2 B &R

of the Company (s 2,751,362 2,728,517 2,972,214 3,093,000 2,852,260
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 450,562 715,748 922,585 - -
Total equity Bl 3,201,924 3,444,265 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260
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Summary of Properties

M=BE

As at 31 March 2017
R2017#3A31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

bk

1. Block A on Seventh Floor and
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDES ILE4815
T8 2 AR R L115R B L

2. Block B1 and portion of
Block B on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NEERDES ILB4815R
718 2 B1EE R BEEES 5>

3. Easy Tower No. 609
Tai Nan West Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NEREDE
N FE 75 160955
KE B

4.  Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground
Floor together with showcase on
Ground Floor, First Floor and
Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,
No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
FLEER A
TEEE195%
TEEESH T -2 3R R T
BE Rk

Purpose

J5iE:S

Industrial

T%

Industrial

T

Industrial/commercial

Commercial

CES

BREM=

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

11,874

6,992

74,458

13,544

Easyknit International Holdings Limited KZ B EBE AR A 7
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Lease term

HANFEH
Medium

+H

Medium

H Hj
Medium

+H

Medium

+H
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Summary of Properties

YI=BE

As at 31 March 2017
R20174#3/131H

A.

B.

Note:

176

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

Location Purpose
ok Ag
Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BAWEE EES
B iEs05 i T
Shops A and B on Ground Floor and Commercial
Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

BEfR] SCHE 5 1138 155% ~ 1ASKE K3%% [HES

BB 158 3t FAR B Kk —1ECH

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Approximate
Location Purpose gross site area
i3k it} B4 7 E AR
(5. 1t)
(FZR)
Nos. 301, 301A - C Prince Edward Residential 8,060
Road West, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
EEf X AT iEFE3015% (i
301A-C5

The Group owns 9 equal undivided 12th parts of share of the
land lot.

A.

B.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A 5
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REWE (&)
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area Lease term
WHgmE
BERAEE HAOFH
(sq. ft)
(FFR)
1,200 Long
B
3,953 Medium
H HR
BIEHERRYE
Percentage of
interest Lease term  Stage of completion
BEEDM HAEHE TRKER
Note Long  Under development
Mzt R BEF

Hist

AR B L+ = (R 2 LA
ERAHEAK -
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